Meeting papers

Pension Board
Friday 23 October 2015 at 1.45 pm
Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

Pension Board

Friday 23 October 2015 at 1.45 pm

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

PENSION BOARD TRAINING AT 11:30AM
1

APOLOGIES

Jo Moore

2

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Jo Moore

3

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)

Jo Moore

To agree the minutes of the previous meeting.
4

UPCOMING TRAINING DAY

Graham Burrow

Pension Committee and Pension Board training day on 5 November 2015.
The training will be from 10:00 to approximately 15:30 and will take place
in Shire Hall. All members of the Pension Board are invited to attend.

5

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS 2014/15 AND THE EXTERNAL
AUDITOR'S AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2014/15 (Pages 5 - 66)

Graham Burrow

To note and consider any points arising from these papers.

6

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Pages 67 - 76)
To consider a report on the Fund performance indicators identified in the
Pension Fund Annual Report and other performance indicators being
piloted by the Scheme Advisory Board.

Date Published:15 October 2015

Graham Burrow

7

POLICY DOCUMENTS

Graham Burrow

Board members have considered the following policy documents:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Governance Policy statement
Governance compliance statement
Statement of Investment Principles (SIP)
Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)
Administration Strategy
Communication Policy

The documents can be viewed at:
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/extra/pensions/investments

To consider any items arising from this.
8

WORK PLAN FOR 2015/16

Graham Burrow

To consider which of the potential work strands as contained within its
terms of reference the Board wishes to prioritise in order that it can plan
accordingly and make best use of limited time.
In preparing a work plan for the coming year, the Board may wish to
consider the following•

Considering the fund’s management, administrative and
governance processes to ensure compliance with the Regulator’s
Code of Practice

•

Considering compliance of decisions taken by the fund’s delegated
decision makers with regulations and the funds own policies

•

Ensuring that the fund’s policies setting out how it will exercise its
discretions under the LGPS are up to date and compliant.

•

Considering the funds own policies on, for example,
communications, governance, administration for compliance with
regulations

•

Any other matters as requested by the administering authority

To also consider other items for the Work Plan.
9

DEVELOPMENT OF A TRAINING STRATEGY REGARDING
KNOWLEDGE AND UNDERSTANDING
Board members have a statutory requirement to be conversant with LGPS
regulations, wider pensions regulation and the requirements of the
Pensions Regulator and have an individual responsibility to acquire such
knowledge. The Board therefore need to develop a training strategy
designed to help all its members to acquire knowledge and skills to ensure
their training needs are met.

Graham Burrow

To consider further actions for the development of a training strategy.
10

NEXT MEETING

Jo Moore

To set the date of the next meeting(s) of the Board.
INFORMATION ITEMS
The minutes from the last meeting of the Pension Committee can be viewed at:
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=270&MId=7930&Ver=4
Membership – Cllr Nigel Moor ,Sean Collins (Head of Pensions, Oxfordshire County Council),
Owen Shaw (Head of HR, Cirencester College), Jon Topping (Head of Finance, Gloucester City
Council) and Kate Walton (Head of Finance, University of Gloucestershire)
(a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk)
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204 /fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please contact Democratic Services (tel
01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services
Officer on duty at the meeting.
EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
PENSION BOARD
MINUTES of a meeting of the Pension Board held on Monday 13 July 2015 at the Cabinet
Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Sean Collins
Cllr Nigel Moor
Owen Shaw

Jon Topping
Kate Walton

Substitutes:
Officers in attendance:

Stephen Bace, Graham Burrow

Others in attendance:

Ian Colvin and Douglas Green (Hymans Robertson)

Apologies:
1.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT CHAIR
1.1

The Board understood that according to national guidance on the creation
and operation of Pensions Board, an independent chair would have no preexisting employment, financial or other material interest in either the
Administering Authority or in any scheme employer in a fund administered by
the Administering Authority and would not be a scheme member in a fund
administered by the Administering Authority.

1.2

It was understood that Sean Collins, the head of Pensions of the Oxfordshire
LGPS Pension Fund had none of these links with the Gloucestershire fund.
Resolved
That the board confirm the appointment of Sean Collins as independent
chair of the Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Board.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Jon Topping declared that he was Section 151 Officer at Gloucester City Council.

3.

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR THE PENSION BOARD
3.1
In response to questions regarding the budget for the Board, it was
confirmed that the costs would be met from the Pension Fund. It was advised that
any request should be made to the Pension Committee.

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

3.2
It was clarified that the terms of reference were based on a template
prepared by Hymans Robertson which was also used by a number of other Pension
Funds in late 2014 when the terms of reference were being prepared.
3.3
The reference to the risk register within the terms of reference was noted
and would be raised during the work plan item on the agenda.
3.4
A query was raised regarding the appointment of members. It was suggested
that there was a potential conflict within the terms of reference over the four year
length of term for each member of the Board, with the requirement for an annual
appointment of a county councillor member at a meeting of Full Council. Officers
advised that the intention was for Board members to serve a four year term to allow
them to develop the required knowledge, with the appointment of the County
Councillor still needing to be endorsed by Full Council each year. Clarity would be
sought on this point.
ACTION
Stephen Bace
3.5

4.

The Board agreed to formally adopt the terms of reference.

COMMUNICATION OF PENSION BOARD BUSINESS WITH EMPLOYERS AND
SCHEME MEMBERS
4.1
Board members discussed the method by which they would communicate,
noting the options presented within the papers. It was agreed that Board members
would maintain internal email communication. It was felt that it was not appropriate
for email addresses to be on the website given the role of the Board.
4.2
It was explained that various newsletters and reports were produced
regarding the Pension Fund and that these might provide opportunity for the Board
to communicate more widely. It was agreed that first point of contact for this would
be Democratic Services.
4.3
The Board requested that they be provided with a timetable for Pension
Committee meetings and publication activity so that the Board could identify
opportunities where they may wish to communicate.
ACTION
Graham Burrow
4.4
The Board agreed to continually review the way they wished to communicate
and felt that there would be an opportunity for reflection when formulating the
Board’s annual report.

-2-

Page 2

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

5.

DEVELOPMENT OF A TRAINING STRATEGY: KNOWLEDGE AND
UNDERSTANDING
5.1
The Board recognised the statutory requirement to be conversant with the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) regulations, wider pensions regulation
and the requirements of the Pension Regulator.
5.2
Officers informed the Board that all new members of the Pension Committee
were required to attend a 3 day training course run by the Local Government
Association (LGA) covering all aspects of the LGPS.
5.3
During discussion, it was suggested that rather than send Pension Board
members on a course at significant expense, it might be beneficial to set up joint
training with neighbouring authorities such as Oxfordshire specifically on Pension
Boards.
5.4
It was suggested that once the Board had developed its work plan and
identified areas of focus, then training could be scheduled to support that activity. It
was commented that until the Board knew what activity it was undertaking, it was
difficult to identify training requirements.
5.5
The LGA course focussed on the much broader aspect of LGPS and one
member commented that he would find some value in attending the course.
Following discussion, it was agreed that :

6.

•

should a member wish to attend the LGA training they would be endorsed by
the panel to do so.

•

work should be undertaken to arrange training with neighbouring authorities
where appropriate.

•

discussion be held with other authorities to identify what training they had
received in this area.
ACTION
Stephen Bace

WORK PLAN
6.1
The Board was asked to identify and prioritise items for their annual work
plan, keeping in mind some of the areas identified within the terms of reference.
6.2
One member queried the development of key performance indicators (KPIs)
and suggested that these might help the Board to identify areas in which to focus
their attention. In response it was explained that these were in the early stages of
development on a pilot basis with a selection of LGPS Funds and their current
status was not clear. It was suggested that a report outlining progress in this
respect would be useful.

-3-

Page 3

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

6.3
Board members identified that it would be helpful to receive Pension
Committee papers, including exempt papers, and attend meetings to observe.
ACTION
Stephen Bace
6.4
There was further discussion of the role the risk register could play in helping
the Board to identify areas of focus, as well as to ensure that risk management was
in place.
6.5
It was suggested that the Board should begin the process of reviewing policy
documents to ensure they has a good understanding of these documents. As part
of this, members identified that it would be useful to have a training session on the
morning of the next Panel meeting to go into the policy documents in detail.
6.6
It was agreed that the next meeting of the Board would be scheduled for
October and that it would include the following items:
•

Work plan
To develop the work plan having considered the following:
o The status of KPIs
o Risk Register
o Pension Committee work plan
o Advisory Board plans for the coming year

•

Review of current policy documents
o Communications Policy
o Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)
o Governance Compliance Statement
o Governance Policy Statement
o Pension Administration Strategy
o Statement of Investment Principles (SIP)

CHAIRMAN
Meeting concluded at 15:05

-4-

Page 4

Agenda Item 5
Pension Board
23 October 2015
rd

Pension Fund Annual Accounts 2014/15 and the External Auditors
Audit Findings Report 2014/15
Report of the Strategic Finance Director

Introduction
The Pension Fund’s Annual Accounts for 2014/15 were considered by the
Pension Committee at their meeting in August 2015 and were agreed by the Audit
and Governance Committee in September 2015.
The external Auditor, Grant Thornton also presented their Audit Findings report
for 2014/15 to the Audit and Governance Committee in September 2015.

Report
Copies of the Pension Fund’s Annual Accounts for 2014/15 and Grant Thornton’s
Audit Findings report for 2014/15 are attached for information and discussion.

Recommendation
The Board are asked to note and consider any points arising from these papers.

Contact Officer
Graham Burrow (01452 328944)

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Fund Account for the year ended 31st March 2015
2014/15

2013/14
re-stated
£000

£000

£000

Note

Dealings with members, employers and others
directly involved in the scheme
-68,809
-16,086
-84,895

-4,719
0
-4,719

-297

58,316
9,165
1,007
68,488

10
-3
3,843
9,200
13,050
-8,373
7,390

Contributions
from employers
from members

N20

-76,113
-16,753

N20

-92,866
Transfers in from other pension funds
individual transfers in from other schemes
group transfers in from other schemes

-3,708
-2,556

N28

-6,264
Other income
recoveries for services provided
Benefits
pensions
commutation of pensions and lump sum retirement
benefits
lump sum death benefits

-157

1,755
71,008

Payments to and on account of leavers
refunds of contributions
state scheme premiums
individual transfers out to other schemes
group transfers out to other schemes

N22

60,335
8,918

102
31
3,579
29,012

N7

N28

32,724
Net (addition)/withdrawal from dealings with scheme
members

4,445

Management expenses

7,093

Returns on investments
investment income
taxes on income
Profit(-) and losses on disposal of investments and
changes in market value of investments

-23,655
41
-190,503

-120,672

Net returns on investments

-214,117

-121,655

Net increase (-) / decrease in the net assets available for
benefits during the year

-202,579

-26,786
1
-93,887

N7

1,384,840

Opening net assets of the scheme

1,506,495

1,506,495

Closing net assets of the scheme

1,709,074

N9, N19
& N22

N15 & N19
N3 & N15
N4 & N19

Net Asset Statement as at 31st March 2015
2014/15

2013/14

£000

£000
150,399
316,478

Investment assets
Fixed interest securities
Equities

Page 7

173,518
312,365

Note

78,543
842,755
90,919
172
4,934
17,025
4,584
1,505,809

Index-linked securities
Pooled investment vehicles
Property unit trusts
Derivative contracts
Other investments - Venture Capital/Private Equity
Cash held on behalf of the investment managers
Other investment balances

103,682
978,743
113,586
587
4,587
6,876
5,439
1,699,383

N10
N2 & N17
N10

Investment liabilities
-16
-1,449
-1,465

609
3,090
3,699

3,050
294
618
7,451

-949

Derivative contracts
Other investment balances

Long term assets
Contributions due from employer
Other long term assets (debtors)

Current assets
Contributions due from employers
Other current assets
Money due re. transfer of staff to another pension scheme

11,413

-61
-12,900
0
-12,961
1,506,495

-1,436
-2,385

338
2,472
2,810

Current liabilities
Unpaid benefits
Other current liabilities
Receipts in advance

Net assets of the scheme available to fund benefits at the
period end

11,306

N2, N23
& N27
N24

-5
-1,975
-60
-2,040

N25

1,709,074

The Fund's financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and
other benefits after the period end but rather summarise the transactions and net
assets of the scheme.
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is disclosed at Note N26.
The notes on the following pages form part of these Financial Statements.

2|Page

Page 8

N24

3,076
581
1,236
6,413

Cash balances

N2 &
N17

N4, N5,
N14 &
N18

Statement of Accounts 2014/15
Notes to the Accounts 2014/15
N1

Introduction
The County Council is the administering body for the Gloucestershire Local Government
Pension Fund. This is not only for County Council employees but also for District
Councils within the County and other local bodies providing public services. A full list of
all employing bodies who are members of the Fund are shown on pages 20 to 22.
The Local Government Pension Scheme is a statutory funded pension scheme. It is
"contracted out" of the state scheme and is termed a defined benefit scheme. From 1st
April 2014, the scheme became a career average scheme, whereby members accrue
benefits based on their pensionable pay in that year at an accrual rate of 1/49th.
Accrued pension is up-rated annually in line with the Consumer Prices Index.
The scheme is voluntary and made available to all (*) employees except fire fighters,
police and teachers (who have their own separate nationally-administered schemes).
The Fund is financed by contributions paid in by the existing employees and their
employers and by earnings from the investment of Fund monies. The number of
contributors at 31st March 2015 was 18,141 (2014 17,936). The Fund is governed by
the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and administered in accordance with the following
secondary legislation:
- The LGPS Regulations 2013 (as amended)
- The LGPS (Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as
amended)
- The LGPS (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended)
A full analysis of membership, funding and benefits can be found in the Pension Fund's
Annual Report. The Fund exists to provide pensions and certain other benefits to former
employees. The Pension Fund is not a Gloucestershire County Council fund and is
subject to its own audit; therefore balances are not included in the Gloucestershire
County Council Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Fund is administered by the Pension
Committee, which is a committee of Gloucestershire County Council.
* There are restrictions with some casual staff

N2

Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Funds' transactions for the 2014/15
financial year and its position at year end as at 31st March 2015. The accounts have
been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2014/15 which is based upon International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector. The accounts summarise the
transactions of the Fund and reports on the net assets available to pay pensions and
benefits. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay pensions and benefits
which fall due after the end of the financial year. The actuarial value of promised
retirement benefits, valued on an International Accounting Standard (IAS19) basis, is
disclosed at Note 26 of these accounts. The accounts are prepared on a going concern
basis.
Accruals Concept Applied
Income and expenditure have been accounted for on an accruals basis so far as
amounts due have been determined in time for inclusion in the accounts. Any amount
due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current financial asset. Benefits payable and
refunds of contributions have been brought into the accounts on the basis of all valid

3|Page

Page 9

claims approved during the year. Individual transfer values are accounted for when they
are paid or received. Bulk transfer values are accrued when the value has been
determined.
Management Expenses
Pension Fund expenses have been accounted for in accordance with the CIPFA
guidance Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs.
Consequently Administrative Expenses and Investment Management Expenses have
been amalgamated under Management Expenses and the comparator figures for
2013/14 have been restated to reflect the implementation of the CIPFA guidance.
Management expenses reported in the Fund Account for 2013/14 have also been
increased by £0.5m to £7.39m and Profit and Loss on disposal of investments and
changes in the market value of investments has similarly been increased by £2.7m to
£93.89m to reflect the fees which had been deducted at source or previously offset
against dividend income. A more detailed breakdown of management expenses can be
found in Note N22.
Investment Management Expenses
The managers' fees have been accounted for on the basis contained within their
management agreements. Broadly these are based on the market value of the
investments under management and therefore increase or decrease as the value of
these investments change. In addition the Fund has agreed with the following
managers that an element of their fee be performance related:
·

Standard Life Investments - UK Equities

·

Hermes - Property Unit Trusts

Hermes deducts its fees from a combination of assets held and income distributions.
GMO and Yorkshire Fund Managers deduct their fees from the value of the assets
under their management.
Acquisition and Transaction Costs of Investments
Pension Fund expenses have been accounted for in accordance with the CIPFA
guidance Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs.
Consequently acquisition costs of investments (e.g. stamp duty) and transaction costs
previously included within the purchase cost/proceeds of investment purchases and
sales have now been added to Investment Management Expenses with a corresponding
offset against Profit on Disposal of Investments; comparator figures for 2013/14 have
been restated to reflect the implementation of the CIPFA guidance. In addition to the
transaction costs disclosed, indirect costs are incurred through the bid/offer spread on
investments within pooled investment vehicles. The amount of indirect costs are not
separately provided to the Fund. Please also see Note 19. A more detailed breakdown
of management expenses can be found in Note N22.
Administration Expenses
All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis. All staff costs
associated with administration are charged to the Fund. Associated management,
accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to this activity and charged as
expenses to the Fund. A more detailed breakdown of administrative expenses can be
found in Note N22.
Oversight & Governance Expenses

4|Page

Page 10

All oversight and governance expenses are accounted for on an accrual basis. All staff
costs associated with oversight and governance are charged to the Fund. Associated
management, accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to this activity and
charged as expenses to the Fund. A more detailed breakdown of oversight and
governance expenses can be found in Note N22.
Where the Fund has obtained investment advice from external consultants the cost is
now included in Oversight & Governance charges.
Valuation of Assets
The SORP requires securities to be valued on a Fair Value Basis therefore assets,
where there is an active and readily available market price, are valued at the bid
(selling) price and liabilities on an offer (buying) price basis. Where assets do not
actively trade through established exchange mechanisms a price is obtained from the
manager of the investment asset. Investments held in foreign currencies are shown at
market value translated into sterling at the exchange rates prevailing as at 31st March
2015. Purchases and sales during the year which require settlement in a foreign
currency are converted from/to sterling at the exchange rate prevailing on the trade
date. Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their yields.
Pooled investment vehicles are valued at closing bid price if both bid and offer prices
are published; or if single priced, at the closing single price. In the case of pooled
investment vehicles that are accumulation funds, change in market value also includes
income which is re-invested in the fund, net of applicable withholding tax. Property
within the property unit trusts are independently valued in accordance with the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors valuation standards. Private Equity is valued using the
latest financial statements published by the respective fund managers and in
accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Guidelines.
Cash
Cash balances held in accordance with the County Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy and those held with the Fund’s Custodian BNY Mellon, on behalf of investment
managers, are in instant access accounts, subject to timing deadlines.
Derivatives
Derivative contracts are valued at fair value and are determined using exchange prices
at the reporting date. The fair value is the unrealised profit or loss at the current bid or
offer market quoted price of the contract. Derivative contract assets, those with a
positive value, are valued at bid price and derivative contract liabilities, those with a
negative value, are valued at the offer price. Amounts due from the broker represent
the amounts outstanding in respect of the initial margin (representing collateral on the
contracts) and any variation margin which is due to or from the broker. The amounts
included in change in market value are the realised gains and losses on closed futures
contracts and the unrealised gains and losses on open futures contracts. The fair value
of the forward currency contracts are based on market forward exchange rates at the
year end date.

N3

Taxation
The Fund is exempt from UK capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments sold.
Corporation Tax is deducted from UK equity dividends; tax deducted from property unit
trusts can be reclaimed. Withholding tax is payable on income from overseas
investments. This tax is recovered wherever local tax laws permit.

5|Page

Page 11

N4

Investment Movements Summary

2014/15
Market
Value at
st
31 March
2014

Purchases
at cost
and
derivative
payments
£'000

Sales
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts
£'000

150,399
316,478
78,543
156
842,755
90,919

38,750
39,878
15,373
201
19,448
11,111

-32,542
-44,212
-5,030
-498
-24,507
-603

16,911
221
14,796
-221
141,047
12,159

173,518
312,365
103,682
-362
978,743
113,586

4,934
1,484,184

259
125,020

-107,392

-606
184,307

4,587
1,686,119

22,311

6,196

22,955

1,506,495

190,503

1,709,074

£'000
Asset Class
Fixed Interest
Equities
Index Linked
Derivatives
Pooled Investments
Property Unit Trusts
Private Equity
Cash movement, currency
adjustments and other end of
year settlements

Change in
market
value, new
money and
accruals
£'000

Market
Value at
st
31 March
2015
£'000

2013/14
Market
Value at
st
31 March
2013
£'000
Asset Class
Fixed Interest
Equities
Index Linked
Derivatives
Pooled Investments
Property Unit Trusts
Private Equity
Cash movement, currency
adjustments and other end of
year settlements

151,104
282,317
74,137
-106
763,382
77,721
4,369
1,352,924

Purchases
at cost
and
derivative
payments
£'000

Sales
proceeds
and
derivative
receipts
£'000

56,997
57,014
20,788
9,940
7,276
152,015

-52,359
-48,244
-11,358
-437
-112,398

Change in
market
value, new
money and
accruals
£'000

Market
Value at
st
31 March
2014
£'000

-5,343
25,391
-5,024
699
69,433
5,922
565
91,643

150,399
316,478
78,543
156
842,755
90,919
4,934
1,484,184

31,916

*2,244

22,311

1,384,840

93,887

1,506,495

*Please see Note N19 – Changes to Comparative Figures.

The change in market value of investments comprises all increases and decreases in
the market value of investments held at any time during the year, including profits and
losses realised on sales of investments during the year.
The derivatives in the previous table represent futures and forward foreign exchange
contracts. The closing market value represents fair value as at the year end date. In the
case of derivative contracts, which are traded on exchanges, this value is determined
using exchange prices at the reporting date. Forward foreign exchange contracts are
over the counter contracts and are valued by determining the gain or loss that would
arise from closing out the contract at the reporting date and entering into an equal and

6|Page

Page 12

opposite contract as at that date. The profit or loss arising is included within the total
'cash movement' figure.
All derivative contracts settled during the period are reported within the table as
purchases and sales.

N5

Management of Fund Assets
The market value of investments managed by each external manager at the end of the
financial year was:

Western Asset Management Company
BlackRock
CBRE
GMO
Standard Life Investments
Hermes Investment Management
Property Unit Trust
YFM Group
Total - External Managers
In-house cash and accruals
Cash instruments with Custodian

2013/14
£000
307,305
414,786
21,839
280,844
404,913

%
20.4
27.5
1.5
18.6
26.9

2014/15
£000
359,868
495,689
37,728
311,184
405,851

%
21.1
29.0
2.2
18.2
23.7

69,715
4,935

4.6
0.3

82,073
4,587

4.8
0.3

1,504,337
2,151
7

99.8
0.2
0.0

1,696,980
12,075
19

99.3
0.7
0.0

1,506,495

100.0

1,709,074

100.0

Where the value of an investment exceeds 5% of the total value of net assets or 5% of
its asset class, details have been disclosed in note N18.

N6

Actuarial Position of the Fund
·

In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations, actuarial
valuations of the Fund are required to be undertaken every three years, for the
purpose of setting employer contribution rates for the forthcoming triennial
period. The latest valuation took place as at 31st March 2013 and established
the minimum contribution payments for the three years until 31st March 2017.
The next valuation will take place as at March 2016.

·

The estimate of the pension fund liability is subject to significant variations,
based on changes to the underlying assumptions used - see below.

·

The results of the 2013 valuation showed that the total common contribution rate
was 32.9% (25.8% 2010 valuation) for the three years to 31st March 2017.
Individual employers' rates will vary from the common contribution rate
depending on the demographic and actuarial factors particular to each employer.
Full details of the contribution rates payable can be found in the 2013 actuarial
valuation report and the Funding Strategy Statement on the Fund's website.
This rate of contribution is the rate which, in addition to the contributions paid by
the members, is sufficient to meet:
o

100% of the liabilities arising in respect of service after the valuation date;

o plus an adjustment over a period of 20 years to reflect the shortfall of the
value of the County Council's notional share of the Fund's assets over
100% of its accrued liabilities, allowing, in the case of members in service,
for future pay increases.

7|Page

Page 13

·

The market value of the Fund's assets at the March 2013 triennial valuation date
was £1,385m (£1,054m March 2010) and represented 70.1% (70.4% March
2010) of the Fund's accrued liabilities, allowing for future pay increases. When a
valuation reveals a deficiency, the employer contribution rates are adjusted to
target restoration of a solvent position over a period of years (the recovery
period). The recovery period applicable for each participating employer is set by
the Administering Authority in consultation with the Scheme Actuary and
employer, with a view to balancing the various funding requirements against the
risks involved due to such issues as the financial strength of the employer and
the nature of its participation in the Fund.

·

The contribution rate has been calculated using the projected unit method in line
with accepted guidelines and the main actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

Funding Basis
Rate of return on investments (Discount Rate)

2010
6.1% pa

2013
4.6% pa

Rate of general pay increases *

4.8% pa **

3.8% pa

Rate of increase to pensions in payment
(in excess of guaranteed minimum
pension)

3.3% pa

2.5% pa

* Plus an allowance is also made for promotional pay increases.
** 1% pa for 2010/11 and 2011/12, reverting to 4.8% pa thereafter.
·

The full actuarial valuation reports for 2007, 2010 and 2013 are published on the
County Council's website and can be viewed using the following web address:

www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments
·

See note N26 for details of the Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement
Benefits.

8|Page

Page 14

N7

Analysis of Contributions Receivable and Benefits Payable
2013/14
Contributions
Benefits
receivable
payable

2014/15
Contributions
Benefits
receivable
payable

£000

£000

£000

£000

(Administering Authority)

37,946

37,147

39,624

39,057

Scheduled Bodies (141 14/15)#
(137 re-stated 13/14)**

39,487

28,592

*45,308

28,613

7,462

2,749

7,934

3,338

84,895

68,488

92,866

71,008

Gloucestershire County Council

(Bodies admitted by right)

Admitted Bodies (35 14/15) (31
13/14)**
(Bodies admitted by agreement)

Scheduled Bodies now include 75 (70 13/14) schools who have converted to academy
status.
# This figure contains one school which in 2014/15 changed from being a Foundation
School (which was already included within Scheduled Bodies) to an Academy.
* The increase in scheduled bodies' contributions of £5.8m is due mainly to the increase in
employers' pension contributions as a result of the 2013 Actuarial Valuation and an
employer paying an extra £1m to improve its funding level.
** These numbers relate to active employers with active members.

N8

Statement of Investment Principles
A Statement of Investment Principles, which sets out the Pension Fund’s long-term
investment objectives, its style of management and policies together with risk
management, performance targets and details of how that performance is monitored
and reviewed, can be found on pages 148 to 159. This statement is also available
on the website at the following address
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments

N9

Related Party Transactions
Gloucestershire County Council, as Administering Authority for the Fund, incurred
the following costs in relation to the administration of the Fund and was
subsequently reimbursed by the Fund for these expenses. The Council is also the
single largest employer of members of the Pension Fund.

Administration expenses

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

1,256

1,412

Part of the Pension Fund's cash holdings are invested on the money markets by the
Treasury Management team of Gloucestershire County Council, see notes N2, N23
and N27.
Of the County Council’s key management personnel, some of the Director: Strategic
Finance’s remuneration costs were charged to the Fund to reflect time spent. These
consisted of salary, fees and allowances of £10,813 (£10,276 2013/14) and

9|Page

Page 15

employers’ pension contributions £2,801 (£2,559 2013/14).
The Director: Strategic Finance is a member of the Fund as a contributing
Gloucestershire County Council employee. This does not impact on her role as
Finance Director and S151 officer, which is clearly defined.
Four members of the Pension Committee, excluding the District Council
Representative, are also District Council members and these are detailed below:
Member
Cllr. D. Brown
Cllr. C. Hay
Cllr. L. Stowe
Cllr. R. Theodoulou

District Council
Gloucester City Council
Cheltenham Borough Council
Cotswold District Council
Cotswold District Council

In addition Councillor L. Stowe is Cotswold District Council’s nominated shareholder
for Ubico Limited, Councillor C. Hay sits on the Boards of Cheltenham Borough
Homes and Cheltenham Leisure & Culture Trust and Councillor N. Cooper is a
governor of Archway School. Ubico Limited, Cheltenham Borough Homes,
Cheltenham Leisure & Culture Trust and Archway School are employers in the
Fund.
Transactions between employers and the Fund are disclosed in note N7.

N10 Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments
The Fund has an investment within a private equity fund managed by Yorkshire
Fund Managers. The following table shows the Fund's total commitment and the
remaining liability, following drawdowns, at the year end.
Total
Commitment

Chandos Fund
CBRE

£000

Outstanding
liability
2013/14
£000

Outstanding
liability
2014/15
£000

3,000
30,000
33,000

546
1,749
2,295

286
591
877

In May 2014 the commitment to CBRE, the global property manager, was increased
from £20m to £30m.

N11

Contingent Assets
Due to retrospective adjustments to how pension payments are made for
Registration staff working additional hours or on a fee basis, a contingent asset of
£38,504 (13/14 £38,504) has been recorded for possible additional contributions from
ex members of staff, during 2015/2016 and future years.

N12 Unquoted Holdings
The following holdings are unquoted:
2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

10,044
280,844
367,653
740
1,528

9,218
311,184
437,153
5,874
4,607

69,290

78,772

Pooled investment vehicles
UK equity unitised insurance policy
Global equity managed funds
Overseas equity unitised insurance policies
UK limited liability partnerships
Overseas limited liability partnerships
Global multi asset unitised insurance policy

10 | P a g e

Page 16

730,099

846,808

14,505
7,426

19,755
11,759

21,931

31,514

752,030

878,322

Property unit trusts
UK property unit trust
Overseas property unit trust

N13 Stocklending
The Pension Funds' custodian has been authorised to release stock to
third parties under a stock lending arrangement. At 31st March 2015 the
value of stock out on loan was £4.8m (2013/14 £3.9m) of which £4.8m
(£3.9m) were UK equities. Collateral of £5.1m (£4.2m) equal to 106%
(108%) of stock out on loan was held in the form of AA rated (or better)
UK and G10 Overseas Government debt. The Pension Fund stipulates
those institutions that are allowed to borrow its stock and the type of
collateral that is acceptable.
N14 Financial Asset Analysis
2013/14
£000

Financial assets

2014/15
£000

Fixed interest securities
UK – Public Sector
- Other
Overseas – Public Sector
- Other

– Quoted
- Quoted
- Quoted
- Quoted

62,670
78,682
6,796
2,251
150,399

63,141
93,852
13,678
2,847
173,518

Equities
UK

– Quoted

316,478

312,365

Index-linked securities
UK – Public Sector
Overseas – Public Sector

– Quoted
- Quoted

78,543
78,543

89,044
14,638
103,682

47,095

58,499

10,044

9,218

367,653

437,153

69,290

78,772

65,561

73,436

280,844

311,184

740

5,874

1,528
842,755

4,607
978,743

Pooled investment vehicles
Unit Trusts
Overseas – Equities – managed from outside the UK
- Quoted
Unitised Insurance Policies
UK – Equities
– Unquoted
Overseas – Equities – managed from outside the UK
– Unquoted*
Global – Multi Asset – managed from within the UK
- Unquoted
Other Managed Funds
O.E.I.C.’s
Overseas - Fixed Interest
– managed from outside the UK – Quoted*
Global – Equities
- managed from outside the UK – Unquoted*
Limited Liability Partnerships
UK Property – managed from within the UK - Unquoted
Overseas Fixed Interest – managed from outside the
UK
- Unquoted

Note

11 | P a g e

Page 17

Property Unit Trusts
UK - managed from within the UK
- Quoted
- managed from within the UK
- Unquoted
- managed from outside the UK
- Unquoted
Overseas – managed from outside the UK – Unquoted

Derivative Contracts
Futures – UK
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

Other Investments
Venture Capital/Private Equity – UK
Cash (Managers)
Cash instruments
Cash Deposits

– UK
– Overseas
– UK
– Overseas

Other Investment Balances
Debtors
Outstanding settlement of investment transactions
Accrued dividend income and tax reclaims due on
dividend income

Total Financial Assets

68,988
14,505
7,426
90,919

82,072
2,595
17,160
11,759
113,586

N10

16
156
172

27
560
587

N17

4,934

4,587

N10

15,082
1,122
704
117
17,025

4,261
1,441
377
797
6,876

-

1,092

4,584
4,584

4,347
5,439

1,505,809

1,699,383

-16
-16

-73
-876
-949

Financial Liabilities
Derivative Contracts
Futures – Overseas
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts

N17

Other investment balances
Creditors
Outstanding settlement of investment transactions

-1,449

-1,436

Total Financial Liabilities

-1,465

-2,385

609
3,090

338
2,472

3,699

2,810

3,050
294
618

3,076
581
1,236

7,451
11,413

6,413
11,306

N23
N24

-61
-12,900
-12,961

-5
-1,975
-60
-2,040

N25

Long Term Assets
Contributions due from employers
Money due re. transfer of staff to another pension
scheme

Current Assets
Contributions due from employers
Other current assets (debtors)
Money due re. transfer of staff to another pension
scheme
Cash balances

Current Liabilities
Unpaid benefits
Other liabilities (creditors)
Receipts in advance

N24

12 | P a g e

Page 18

1,506,495

1,709,074

* These overseas pooled funds may incorporate some UK assets.

13 | P a g e

Page 19

N15

Investment Income
Investment income arises from the following investment categories:

Fixed interest
Equities
Index-linked
Pooled investment vehicles
Interest on cash deposits
Private equity
Other income from Stocklending, underwriting and
class actions
Withholding tax

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

6,307
13,192
2,050
4,504
125
586

6,537
11,105
1,264
4,631
93
-

22
26,786
-1

25
23,655
-41

*26,785

23,614

*Please see Note 19 – Changes to Comparative Figures

N16 Separately Invested Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVC’s)
Gloucestershire County Council LGPS provides additional voluntary contribution (AVC)
schemes for its members, with The Prudential Assurance Company Limited and Phoenix
Life Limited. The AVC's are invested separately in funds managed by them. These are in
the form of with-profits, unit-linked and deposit accounts and secure additional benefits on a
money purchase basis for those members electing to pay additional voluntary contributions.
Members participating in this arrangement receive an annual statement confirming amounts
held to their account and movements in the year. These amounts are not included in the
Pension Fund Accounts in accordance with section 4 (2) (b) of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (SI 2009/3093).
Prudential
2014/15
2013/14
£000
£000
Value of
investments at 1st
April
Prior year
adjustments
Contributions
received in year *
Death in service
premiums paid by
members
Sales of
investments
Changes in value
of investments
Present value of
investments

Phoenix Life
2014/15
2013/14
£000
£000

Total Investments
2014/15
2013/14
£000
£000

7,390

7,416

138

115

7,528

7,531

-

2

-

-

-

2

664

661

2

0

666

661

-7

-6

-

-

-7

-6

-957

-946

-25

-21

-982

-967

326

400

-

-

326

400

7,416

7,527

115

94

7,531

7,621

* Contributions paid by members in the Prudential scheme during 2014/15 totalled £661,109
(2013/14 £664,112) which included additional death in service premiums totalling £6,417
(2013/14 £6,794).

N17

Derivatives

14 | P a g e

Page 20

Investments in derivatives are only made if they contribute to a reduction of risks and
facilitate efficient portfolio management. A derivative is a generic term for financial
instruments used in the management of portfolios and is a financial contract between two
parties, the value of which is determined by the underlying asset. Derivatives include
futures, forwards, swaps and options.
The fixed income portfolio uses futures and options for duration and yield curve
management purposes. Additionally, the investment strategy for this manager, for all
overseas currency exposures, is to be fully hedged back in to Sterling which is achieved by
the use of foreign exchange forward contracts. To mitigate large unrealised profits or losses
accruing with any one counterparty the contracts are split between a handful of banks and
the contracts rolled quarterly in order that any gains or losses are realised at regular
intervals.
The investment strategy of the property manager with overseas holdings is to place forward
currency trades with the intention of hedging foreign currency exposure to ensure the
portfolio is not impacted by currency fluctuations. The hedges are achieved by placing
foreign exchange forward contracts with the Fund's custodian.
In the table below, the ‘notional value’ of the stock purchases under futures contracts
is the economic exposure and the value subject to market movements as at 31st
March 2015.

Derivative Contract
Analysis

Contract
type*

2013/14
Notional
Value

2014/15
Notional
Value

£000

£000

Expiration

2013/14
Market
Value

2014/15
Market
Value

£000

£000

Investment Assets
Futures
UK – Fixed Interest
UK Long Gilt Future
UK Futures

ET

Total Futures
Forward foreign exchange
contracts

OTC

Total Derivative Assets
Investment liabilities
Futures
Overseas – Fixed Interest
US Treasury Bond Future
Overseas Futures

ET

Total Futures
Forward foreign exchange
contracts

Total Derivative Liabilities

OTC

4,162
4,162

2,415
2,415

4,162

2,415

16,411

21,631

20,573

24,046

-

3,753
3,753

-

3,753-

658

32,462

658

36,215

Less than 3
months

Less than 6
months

Less than 3
months

Less than 6
months

Net Futures

16
16

27
27

16

27

156

560

172

587

-

-73
-73

-

-73

-16

-876

-16

-949

156

-362

* Contract types ET (exchange traded) OTC (over-the-counter)

15 | P a g e

Page 21

The total Futures' initial margin for 2014/15 was £0.0m (£0.1m 2013/14) and the total
variation margin was £0.2m (£0.2m 2013/14). The initial margin is an amount of money
deposited by both buyers and sellers of Futures contracts to ensure performance of the
terms of the contract. The variation margin reflects the accumulated cash flows from the
daily marking to market that accrues in the futures broker’s account.

A breakdown of the open forward foreign exchange contracts at 31st March 2015 is given
below:Open Forward Currency Contracts at 31st March 2015

Settlement
Up to six months
Up to six months
Up to three months
Up to three months
Up to six months
Up to six months
Up to six months
Up to six months
Up to six months
Up to six months
Up to three months
Up to six months
Up to six months
Up to three months
Up to six months
Up to six months

Currency
bought

GBP
GBP
USD
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
EUR
GPB
GBP
GBP

Local
Value
000

Currency
Sold

EUR
USD
BRL
MXN
AUD
HKD
MYR
CNY
JPY
USD
USD
USD
GBP
USD
EUR
NZD

13,982
2,860
1,757
1,292
758
413
387
174
599
10,868
7,650
5,478
5,959
1,190
2,706
154

Local
Value
000

18,642
4,195
5,559
29,110
1,466
4,702
2,125
1,589
106,365
16,643
11,750
8,340
4,416
1,787
3,738
309

Asset
Value
£000

Liability
Value
£000

484
32
19
8
7
5
3
2
-

560
Net forward currency contracts at 31st March
2015
Prior year comparative
Open forward currency contracts at 31st March
2014
Net forward currency contracts at 31st March 2014

N18

156

-

346

-

267

-

142

-

102

-

14

-

4

-

1

-

876

-

316

-

16
140

Investments Exceeding 5% of Total Net Assets or that Exceed 5% of their
Asset Class

At 31st March 2015 the Pension Fund held two, (2013/14, two) investments that each exceeded
5% of the total value of the net assets of the scheme. These are detailed as follows:
Investments exceeding 5% of Total Net Assets

* BlackRock Global Equity Fund

2013/14
£000
367,653

%
24.4

2014/15
£000
437,153

%
25.6

16 | P a g e

Page 22

* GMO World Equity Allocation
Investment Fund

280,844

18.6

311,184

18.2

648,497

43.0

748,337

43.8

BlackRock investments are Unitised Insurance Policies
GMO Investment Fund is an O.E.I.C. investing in global equities
* Indicates assets which are in excess of 5% of both net assets and their asset class for 2014/15
Investments exceeding 5% of their Asset Class
2013/14
£000
%
Fixed interest securities
Treasury 4.25% 2040
Treasury 3.75% 2021
Treasury 4.25% 2039

2014/15
£000

%

19,247
13,714
8,864

12.8
9.1
5.9

21,942
14,479
9,725

12.6
8.3
5.6

Treasury 1.25% 2018 **

11,366

7.6

-

-

Equities
Royal Dutch Shell 'B' Shares
HSBC Holdings

19,788
18,933

6.3
6.0

18,476
18,174

5.9
5.8

Index-linked securities
United Kingdom IL 1.875% 2022
United Kingdom IL 1.25% 2027
Treasury IL Variable Rate 2035
United Kingdom IL 1.125% 2037
US Treasury IL 1.375% 2044
Treasury IL 1.25% 2055
United Kingdom IL 1.25% 2032
United Kingdom IL 0.375% 2062
Treasury IL 0.75% 2047

14,393
12,359
11,302
9,052
6,992
7,211
7,277
4,017

18.3
15.7
14.4
11.5
8.9
9.2
9.3
5.1

14,932
13,681
13,109
10,873
9,132
9,390
8,339
5,831
5,202

14.4
13.2
12.6
10.5
8.8
9.1
8.0
5.6
5.0

367,653
280,844

43.6
33.3

437,153
311,184

44.7
31.8

69,290
64,647
47,095

8.2
7.7
5.6

78,772
72,587
58,499

8.0
7.4
6.0

68,988
5,136

75.9
5.6

82,072
8,671

72.3
7.6

16
-

100.0
-

27

100.0

-

-

-73

100.0

2,931
2,003

59.4
40.6

2,833
1,754

61.8
38.2

Pooled investment vehicles
BlackRock Global Equity Fund
*
GMO World Equity Allocation Investment Fund
*
Standard Life Global Absolute Return Strategies
Fund
Legg Mason Global Funds - WA GMS
BlackRock Emerging Markets Index Fund
Property unit trusts
Hermes Property Unit Trust

Global Alpha Fund
Derivative contracts - assets
UK Long Gilt Future (LIF) Exp Jun 14
UK Long Gilt Future (LIF) Exp Jun 15
Derivative contracts - liabilities
US Treasury Bond Future (CBT) Exp Jun 15
Other investments - Venture Capital/Private Equity
South West Venture Fund
Chandos Fund
** Investment held is now below 5% of asset class

17 | P a g e

Page 23

N19 Changes to Comparative Figures
Management expenses (Notes 1 and 22)
Pension Fund expenses have been accounted for in accordance with the CIPFA guidance
Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs. This has resulted
in Administrative Expenses and Investment Management Expenses being amalgamated
under Management Expenses and the comparator figures for 2013/14 being restated to
reflect the amalgamation.
Transaction costs previously included within the purchase cost/proceeds of investment
purchases and sales have now been added to Investment Management Expenses with a
corresponding offset against Profit on Disposal of Investments.
Fees previously deducted at source and offset against dividend income are now offset
against Profit on Disposal of Investments.
A more detailed breakdown of management expenses can be found in Note N22.
Fund Account

2013/14

Administrative expenses
Investment management expenses
Management expenses
Investment income
Profit and losses on disposal of investments and changes in
market value of investments

Difference

£000
1,256
5,638
-29,005

2013/14
re-stated
£000
7,390
26,786

-91,172

-93,887

-2,715

£000
-1,256
-5,638
7,390
2,219

Investment Movement Summary (Note 4)
Cash movement, currency adjustments and other end of year
settlements
Investment Income (Note 15)
Pooled investment vehicles

-471

2,244

4,504

6,723

2,715

-2,219

Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments (Note N27)
Other Price Risk - Sensitivity Analysis

Pooled Funds containing global equities were previously classified under Overseas Equities.
As these funds may incorporate some UK assets they have been re-classified as Multi
National Equities.
The 2014/15 Values on Increase and Decrease have been valued on a 3 year standard
deviation and the 2013/14 values have been re-stated to ensure a direct comparison. Both
the re-stated figures and the original figures for 2013/14 are shown in Note 27.

N20

Contributions Breakdown

From Employers:
Normal

2013/14
£'000

2014/15
£'000

38,166

41,158

-

Augmentation
Deficit Funding
Other

From Members:
Normal

27,700
2,943
68,809

32,228
2,727
76,113

15,774

16,379

18 | P a g e

Page 24

312
16,086

Additional Voluntary

374
16,753

The employers' monthly contributions and deficit funding payments are based on a
percentage of pensionable pay and have been identified above. The deficit funding
contributions relate to past service benefit accrual and are payable over an agreed recovery
period, not exceeding 20 years.
Other contributions are those contributions paid by an employer to compensate the Pension
Fund for early retirement costs, excess ill health retirement costs or to improve their funding
levels.
These payments follow the principles outlined in the Funding Strategy Statement. Early
retirement costs are usually paid in one lump sum or were historically paid over several
years dependent on the status of the employer. When a payment is spread there is an extra
cost to reflect the delay in total payment. There are currently no early retirement costs being
spread; however at 31st March 2015 £0.1m (2013/14 £0.2m) was due to the Pension Fund
for early retirements, which have been accrued.
Excess ill health retirement costs are invoiced for as they arise and funding level payments
are made by an employer voluntarily.
It had been agreed previously that an employer who left the Fund in 2008/09 could spread
the payment of their deficit over a number of years. The total amount was credited to the
Pension Fund and an accrual made for the outstanding amount. The accrual is rolled forward
each year and adjusted for deficit payments made.

N21 Custody of Investments
The accounts for the year ended 31st March 2015 use the valuations for the Fund's assets
provided by our custodian, BNY Mellon Asset Servicing SA/NV. This reflects the position of the
custodian who is ultimately the master book of record. Fund Managers must make sure that
their records agree with those kept by the custodian, although the investment values may be
obtained from different sources. Using the custodian’s valuations ensures that the various
portfolios are priced consistently, so that the same stocks, in different portfolios, are valued on
the same basis. Investments held in custody by BNY Mellon Asset Servicing SA/NV on behalf
of the Pension Fund, are ring-fenced from the assets of the Bank and segregated within its
books as belonging to Gloucestershire County Council's Pension Fund.

N22. Management expenses
Pension Fund expenses have been accounted for in accordance with the CIPFA
guidance Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs.
This has resulted in Administrative Expenses and Investment Management Expenses
being amalgamated under Management Expenses.
Transaction costs of £350,127 (£345,271 2013/14) previously included within the
purchase cost/proceeds of investment purchases and sales have now been added to
Investment Management Expenses with a corresponding offset against Profit on
Disposal of Investments.
A third category of expense, Oversight & Governance, has also been added.
Comparator figures for 2013/14 have been re-stated to reflect the amalgamation and
the addition of the third category and the re-categorisation of some of the expenses.
2013/14
re-stated
£000
Investment management expenses *

6,074

2014/15
£000
5,753

19 | P a g e

Page 25

Administration expenses
Oversight & governance
Please see note N19

933
407
7,093

858
458
7,390

* Please see a more detailed breakdown of the investment management expenses
below.
Within oversight and governance costs there were actuarial expenses of £134,997
(£197,343 2013/14) generated by specific employer requirements, these were then charged
back to the employer. The corresponding income is included within Recoveries for Services
Provided in the Fund Account.
2013/14
re-stated
£'000
2,598
1,154
3,752

2014/15

Performance fee - invoiced
- deducted from investment

1,563
352
1,915
5,667

244
354
598
5,331

Transaction costs
Custody costs

345
62
6,074

350
72
5,753

Investment management expenses*
Management fees - invoiced
- deducted from investment

£'000
2,865
1,868
4,733

The management fees disclosed above include all investment management fees directly
incurred by the Fund. In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the
bid-offer spread on investments sales and purchases. These are reflected in the cost of
investment acquisitions and in the proceeds from the sales of investments.
The change in management fees is due to a combination of an increase in market
values on which most of the Fund Managers' fees are based and a reduction in
performance fees. In 14/15 the fee basis of one manager was changed from a
combination of a percentage of assets under management and an outperformance
element to purely a percentage of assets under management.
N23. Cash
From the 1st April 2010 the Pension Fund has had its own bank account. At 31st March
2015 cash of £6.4m (£7.5m 2013/14) was invested through the County Council's short-term
investment procedures. During the year the average investment balance was £4.4m (£10.3m
2013/14) earning interest of £20k (£57k 2013/14).

N24 Current & Long Term Assets

Contributions due - Employees
Contributions due - Employers
Sundry debtors
Money due re. transfer of staff to another pension scheme*

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

551
2,499
294
618
3,962

572
2,504
581
1,236
4,893

20 | P a g e

Page 26

Cash balances

7,451
11,413

6,413
11,306

*The annual instalment of £618k due from a transfer of staff to another pension scheme in 2014/15
was not received in 2014/15. Therefore an accrual has been included for the 2014/15 and 2015/16
instalments within Current Assets. Instalments due beyond 2015/16 have been included under
Long Term Assets. The instalment relating to 2014/15 has now been received.
Analysis of debtors
Current assets
Central government bodies
Other local authorities
NHS bodies
Public corporations and trading funds
Academies
Other entities and individuals

Long term assets
Central government bodies
Other entities and individuals

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

628
1,381
15
402
1,536
3,962

1,311
1,399
16
405
1,762
4,893

2013/14
£'000

2014/15
£'000

3,090
609
3,699

2,472
338
2,810

One central government body has transferred to another pension fund and the resulting
bulk transfer value due is being paid over a number of years. The total amount was
credited to the Pension Fund and an accrual has been made for the outstanding amount.
The accrual will be rolled forward each year and adjusted for payments made. Payments
of £1,236,000 are due to the Pension Fund within the next twelve months.
It had been agreed that two employers who left the Fund could spread the payment of their
deficits over a number of years. The total amount was credited to the Pension Fund and
accruals made for the outstanding amount. Accruals are rolled forward each year and
adjusted for deficit payments made. One employer has now paid its deficit in full.
Payments of £26,000 are due to the Pension Fund within the next twelve months.

N25. Current liabilities
2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

Benefits payable
Sundry creditors
Receipts in advance

-61
-12,900
-12,961

-5
-1,975
-60
-2,040

Analysis of creditors

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

Central government bodies
Other local authorities
Other entities and individuals

-589
-9,368
-3,004
-12,961

-690
-178
-1,172
-2,040

Sundry Creditors in 2013/14 contained an accrual of £9.2m relating to a bulk transfer value
due to another pension fund; £9.5m was subsequently paid in June 2014.

21 | P a g e

Page 27

N26 Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
In addition to the triennial funding valuation (See Note N6), the fund’s Actuary also undertakes
a valuation of the pension fund liabilities on an IAS19 basis every year. These liabilities have
been projected using a roll forward approximation from the last triennial valuation as at 31st
March 2013.
Balance Sheet:
Year Ended
Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
Net Assets Available for Benefits
Year Ended

31 March 2015
£m
2,748

st

31 March 2015
£m
1,709

31 March 2014
£m
1,506

Net Assets

st

st

31 March 2014
£m
2,304

st

The assumptions used are those adopted for the Administering Authorities IAS19 report, as
required by the Code of Practice, and these differ from those used for the triennial valuation. It
is estimated that the impact of the change of assumptions to 31st March 2015 is to increase the
actuarial present value by £364m (£94m 2013/14).
Significant Actuarial Assumptions Used
Financial assumption:
Year Ended

st

31 March 2014
% pa
2.8
4.1
4.3

Inflation/Pension Increase Rate
Salary Increase Rate
Discount Rate

st

31 March 2015
% pa
2.4
3.8
3.2

Longevity assumption:
The life expectancy assumption is based on the Fund’s VitaCurves with improvements in line
with the CMI 2010 model, assuming the current rate of improvements has reached a peak and
will converge to a long term rate of 1.25% p.a. Based on these assumptions the average future
life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:
Males

Females
Years

Current Pensioners
Future Pensioners**

22.5
24.4

24.6
27.0

** Future pensioners are assumed to be currently aged 45.

Commutation assumption:
An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 50% of the maximum additional
tax free cash up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the maximum tax free
cash for post-April 2008 service.

22 | P a g e

Page 28

N27. Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments

The Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Fund's (“The Fund”) objective is to
generate positive investment returns for a given level of risk. Therefore the Fund
holds financial instruments such as securities (equities, bonds), collective investment
schemes (or pooled funds) and cash and cash equivalents. In addition debtors and
creditors arise as a result of its operations. The value of these financial instruments
in the financial statements approximates to their fair value.
The Fund's primary long-term risk is that the Fund's assets will fall short of its
liabilities i.e. promised benefits payable to members. Therefore the aim of investment
risk management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction on the value of the
Fund and to maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole fund portfolio. The
Fund achieves this through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk
(price risk, currency risk and interest rate risk) and credit risk to an acceptable level.
In addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to
meet the Fund's forecast cash flows.
The Fund's investments are managed on behalf of the Fund by the appointed
Investment Managers. Each Investment Manager is required to invest the assets
managed by them in accordance with the terms of their investment guidelines or
pooled fund prospectus. The Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Fund
Committee ("Committee") has determined that the investment management structure
is appropriate and is in accordance with its investment strategy. The Committee
regularly monitors each investment manager and considers and takes advice on the
nature of the investments made and associated risks.
The Fund's investments are held by BNY Mellon Asset Servicing, who acts as
custodian on behalf of the Fund.
Because the Fund adopts a long term investment strategy, the high level risks
described below will not alter significantly during the year unless there are significant
strategic or tactical changes in the portfolio.
Market Risk
Market risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices, interest rates or currencies. The Fund
is exposed through its investments in equities, bonds and investment funds, to all
these market risks. The aim of the investment strategy is to manage and control
market risk within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return from the
investment portfolio.
In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification
of the portfolio in terms of geographical, industry sectors, individual securities,
investment mandate guidelines and Investment Managers. The risk arising from
exposure to specific markets is limited by the strategic asset allocation, which is
regularly monitored by the Committee as well as appropriate monitoring of market
conditions and benchmark analysis.

Other Price Risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, caused by factors other than
23 | P a g e

Page 29

interest rate or foreign currency movements, whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual instrument, its issuer or factors affecting all such
instruments in the market.
Market price risk arises from uncertainty about the future value of the financial
instruments that the Fund holds. All securities investments present a risk of loss of
capital. Except for shares sold short, the maximum risk resulting from financial
instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. Possible
losses from shares sold short are unlimited. The Investment Managers mitigate this
price risk through diversification in line with their own investment strategies and
mandate guidelines.

24 | P a g e

Page 30

Other Price Risk - Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity of the Fund's investments to changes in market prices has been
analysed using the volatility of return experienced by each investment portfolio
during the year to 31st March 2015. The volatility data is broadly consistent with a
one-standard deviation movement in the value of the assets. The analysis assumes
that all other variables remain constant.
Movements in market prices would have increased or decreased the assets, as held
by the Fund's custodian, at 31st March 2015 by the amounts shown below:
st

As at 31 March 2015

Value
£000

Volatility of
return
%

Value on
Increase
£000

Value on
Decrease
£000

UK Bonds
UK Index Linked Gilts
UK Equities
Overseas Bonds
Multi National Equities*
UK Property
Overseas Property
Venture Capital/Private Equity

170,671
89,045
321,583
95,528
885,608
107,701
11,759
4,587
1,686,482

6.8
10.4
10.7
5.1
9.0
2.7
14.7
14.3

182,277
98,305
355,992
100,400
965,313
110,609
13,488
5,243
1,831,627

159,066
79,784
287,174
90,656
805,903
104,793
10,030
3,931
1,541,337

Total Gloucestershire Fund

1,686,482

6.5%

1,796,103

1,576,861

Value

Volatility of
return

Value on
Increase

Value on
Decrease

£'000

%

£'000

£'000

UK Bonds
UK Index Linked Gilts
UK Equities
Overseas Bonds
Multi National Equities*
UK Property
Overseas Property**
Venture Capital/Private Equity

150,399
78,543
326,521
67,090
764,882
84,233
7,425
4,935
1,484,028

6.0
10.0
13.7
5.7
11.3
2.7
8.9
14.1

159,423
86,397
371,254
70,914
851,314
86,507
8,086
5,631
1,639,526

141,375
70,689
281,788
63,266
678,450
81,959
6,764
4,239
1,328,530

Total Gloucestershire Fund

1,484,028

8.1

1,604,235

1,363,822

st

As at 31 March 2014 - re-stated

* Previously classified as Overseas Equities
** Unable to use 3 year standard deviation therefore standard deviation used to cover period
*** Please see Note 19 - Changes to Comparative Figures

st

As at 31 March 2014 - original

Value
£000

Volatility of
return
%

Value on
Increase
£000

Value on
Decrease
£000

25 | P a g e

Page 31

UK Bonds
UK Index Linked Gilts
UK Equities
Overseas Bonds
Overseas Equities
UK Property
Overseas Property

150,399
78,543
326,521
67,090
764,882
84,233

6.9
9.3
15.3
17.8
19.4
3.5

160,777
85,822
376,495
79,052
912,955
87,166

140,022
71,263
276,547
55,127
616,808
81,301

Venture Capital/Private Equity

7,425
4,935
1,484,028

8.9
13.1

8,087
5,579
1,715,933

6,765
4,290
1,252,123

Total Gloucestershire Fund

1,484,028

8.1

1,604,235

1,363,822

Interest Rate Risk
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on
investments. These investments are subject to interest rate risk, which represents
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates. This risk will affect the value of both fixed
interest and index linked securities. The amount of income receivable from cash
balances will also be affected by fluctuations in interest rates.
The Funds exposure to interest rate movements, as a result of the bond portfolio, as
at the 31st March 2015 is set out below along with the interest rate sensitivity
analysis data.
Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis
The Council recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the
Fund and the value of the net assets available to pay benefits. Over the last five
years long term yields, as measured by the yield on the FTSE Over 15 Year Gilt
Index, have averaged 3.4% (2013/14 3.7%) and moved between a high of 4.6%
(4.5% 2013/14) and a low of 2% (2.8% 2013/14). As at the end of March 2015 this
yield was 2.2% (3.4% 2013/14). Given the high degree of uncertainty over the future
economic situation, the Fund's bond manager has advised that it is entirely possible
that yields could fluctuate anywhere within this historic range in the next year, or in
extreme circumstances outside these boundaries.
The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular, exchange
rates, remain constant and shows the effect in the year on the values of a +/- 100bps
(1%) change in interest rates.

Asset type

Bond Portfolio - Fixed Interest Securities
excluding cash

Carrying
amount as at
31st March
2015

Change in the year in the
net assets available to
pay benefits

£000

+100BPS
£000

-100BPS
£000

355,601

-46,138

46,138

26 | P a g e

Page 32

Asset type

Bond Portfolio - Fixed Interest Securities
excluding cash

Carrying
amount as at
31st March
2014

Change in the year in the
net assets available to
pay benefits

£000

+100BPS
£000

-100BPS
£000

294,926

-35,041

35,041

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Fund is exposed to currency risk on both monetary and non-monetary investments
denominated in a currency other than Sterling. For a Sterling based investor, when
Sterling weakens, the Sterling value of foreign currency denominated investments
rises. As Sterling strengthens, the Sterling value of foreign currency denominated
investment falls. Apart from permitting the fixed income portfolio manager and global
property manager to hedge currency exposures back to Sterling, the Fund’s current
policy is to not hedge foreign currency exposure.
Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis
Following analysis of historical data, by the Fund’s performance measurement
service, the likely volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements is
considered to be 5.6% (as measured by one standard deviation).
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.
A 5.6% strengthening/weakening of the Pound against the various countries in which
the Fund holds investments would increase/decrease the net assets available to pay
benefits as follows:

2014/15
Currency exposure - Asset type

Global Fixed Interest
UK Equities
Global Equities
Emerging Market Equities
Global Multi Asset

Asset value
as at
31st March
2015
£000

Change to net assets
available to pay benefits
£000
+5.6%

£000
-5.6%

2,283

2,411

2,155

739

780

698

721,333

761,728

680,938

58,499

61,775

55,223

27 | P a g e

Page 33

2013/14
Currency exposure - Asset type

78,772

83,183

74,361

861,626

909,877

813,375

Asset value
as at
31st March
2014
£000

Change to net assets
available to pay benefits
£000
+5.3%

£000
-5.3%

1,133

1,193

1,073

725

763

687

623,502

656,548

590,456

Emerging Market Equities

47,095

49,591

44,599

Global Multi Asset

69,290

72,962

65,618

741,745

781,057

702,433

Global Fixed Interest
UK Equities
Global Equities

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or financial
instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial
loss. This is often referred to as counterparty risk.
In essence the Fund's entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit
risk, with exception of the derivatives positions, where the risk equates to the net
market value of a positive derivative position. However, the careful selection and
monitoring of counterparties including brokers, custodian and investment managers
minimises any credit risk that may occur through the failure to settle transactions in a
timely manner. The Fund's contractual exposure to credit risk is represented by the
net payment or receipt that remains outstanding, and the cost of replacing the
derivative position in the event of a counterparty default. The residual risk is minimal
due to the various insurance policies held by the exchanges to cover defaulting
counterparties.
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the custodian may affect the Fund's access to its assets.
However, all assets held by the custodian are ring-fenced as "client assets" and
therefore cannot be claimed by creditors of the custodian. The Fund manages its
risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial position of the custodian.
Credit risk on over the counter derivative contracts is minimised as counterparties
are recognised financial intermediaries with acceptable credit ratings determined by
a recognised rating agency.
The Fund's bond portfolios have significant credit risk through its underlying
investments. This risk is managed through diversification across sovereign and
corporate entities, credit quality and maturity of bonds. The market prices of bonds
incorporate an assessment of credit quality in their valuation which reflects the
probability of default (the yield of a bond will include a premium that will compensate
for the risk of default).
28 | P a g e

Page 34

The Council believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk within an acceptable
level and its default experience over the last five financial years is not significantly
out of line with the industry.
Another source of credit risk is the cash balances held to meet operational
requirements or by the managers at their discretion. Internally held cash is managed
on the Fund's behalf by the Council's Treasury Management Team in line with the
Fund's Treasury Management Policy which sets out the permitted counterparties and
limits. The Fund invests surplus cash held with the custodian in diversified money
market funds.
Through its securities lending activities, the Fund is exposed to the counterparty risk
of the collateral provided by borrowers against the securities lent. This risk is
managed by restricting the collateral permitted to high grade sovereign debt and
baskets of liquid equities. Cash collateral is not permitted.
Foreign exchange contracts are subject to credit risk in relation to the counterparties
of the contracts which are primarily banks. The maximum credit exposure on foreign
currency contracts is any net profit on forward contracts, should the counterparty fail
to meet its obligations to the Fund when it falls due.
The credit risk within the bond portfolios can be analysed using standard industry
credit ratings and the analysis as at 31st March 2015 is set out below.

st

31 March 2015

AAA
£000

AA
£000

A
£000

BBB
£000

BB
£000

B
£000

Unrated
£000

UK Gilts

63,475

-

-

-

-

-

-

UK Index Linked

89,296

-

-

-

-

-

-

Overseas Govt Bonds

12,229

-

-

-

-

-

-

Overseas Inflation-linked

13,548

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,419

36,006

24,390

9,076

-

1,815

1,779

1,448

6,186

12,748

-

-

-

-

-

1,797

2,237

-

-

-

Mortgages

1,105

-

-

-

-

-

-

Supra/Sov/Local Govts

4,669

-

-

-

-

-

-

Credit Analysis

Corporate Bonds
Asset Backed
Emerging Markets

29 | P a g e

Page 35

Cash/Cash
Equivalents/Currency
Forwards

186,101

4,867

43,989

39,375

9,076

-

2,182
3,997

64.8

1.7

15.3

13.6

3.2

-

1.4

AAA
£000

AA
£000

A
£000

BBB
£000

BB
£000

B
£000

Unrated
£000

UK Gilts

59,499

-

-

-

-

-

-

UK Index Linked

78,890

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,081
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,165

25,770

86,249

4,948

2,001

1,033

1,538

2,296

5,712

11,373

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Mortgages

1,015

-

-

-

-

-

-

Supra/Sov/Local Govts

4,502

-

-

851

-

-

-

3,715
155,240

5,461

31,482

98,473

4,948

2,001

8,841
9,874

50.5

1.8

10.2

32.0

1.6

0.7

3.2

% of Fixed Interest
Portfolio
st

31 March 2014

Credit Analysis

Overseas Govt Bonds
Overseas Inflation-linked
Corporate Bonds
Asset Backed
Emerging Markets

Cash/Cash
Equivalents/Currency
Forwards

% of Fixed Interest
Portfolio

Treasury Management Year End Cash Balances
The management of Pension Fund cash balances not held by the Custodian is
delegated to Gloucestershire County Council's Treasury Management team to
manage in accordance with their Treasury Management Strategy, which reflects the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in Public Services. Pension Fund
cash is invested separately from Gloucestershire County Council monies.
The Fund's cash holding under its treasury management arrangements at 31st
March 2015 is shown below:

Account Name
Ignis Liquidity Fund
Federated Prime Rate Liquidity Fund
**HSBC Instant Access
HSBC Current Account
Svenska Handelsbanken
Total

Balances as at 31st
March 2014
Rating*
£000
AAAmmf
2,427
AAAmmf
A1/AA20
A1/AA4
A1/AA5,000
7,451

Balances as at 31st
March 2015
Rating*
£000
3,837
AAAmmf
2,019
AAAmmf
531
A-1+/AA25
A-1+/AAA-1+/AA6,412

30 | P a g e

Page 36

* Ratings quoted are all Standard and Poors as at 31st March 2015 and 2014 with
the exception of Federated Prime, which is Fitch rated as at 31st March 2015.
** Renamed
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Council therefore takes steps to ensure that the
Pension Fund has adequate cash resources to meet its commitments. A substantial
portion of the Fund's investments consist of readily realisable securities, in particular
equities and fixed income investments, even though a significant proportion is held in
pooled funds. However, the main liability of the Fund are the benefits payable, which
fall due over a long period and the investment strategy reflects the long term nature
of these liabilities. Therefore the Fund is able to manage the liquidity risk that arises
from its investments in less liquid asset classes such as property which are subject
to longer redemption periods and cannot be considered as liquid as the other
investments. The Fund maintains a cash balance to meet working requirements and
has immediate access to its cash holdings.
All financial liabilities are due within one year.
Refinancing risk
Refinancing risk relates to the Fund being required to replenish a significant
proportion of its financial instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates.
Refinancing risk within the Bond portfolio is mitigated through credit and liquidity
analysis of all investments and diversification by issuer and maturity. The CBRE
property fund managed on behalf of the Pension Fund is not leveraged or subject to
refinancing risk. However, the underlying investments within this portfolio are
leveraged and so may be subject to refinancing risk. This risk is mitigated by
covenants written into the Fund documentation. There are no other financial
instruments that have refinancing risk as part of its treasury management and
investment strategies.
Fair value hierarchy
The Fund is required to classify its investments using a fair value hierarchy that
reflects the subjectivity of the inputs used in making an assessment of fair value.
Fair value is the value at which the investments could be realised within a
reasonable timeframe. This hierarchy is not a measure of investment risk but a
reflection of the ability to value the investments at fair value. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:
·

Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement
date.

·

Level 2 – Inputs other than quoted prices under Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

·

Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability used to measure fair
value that rely on the reporting entity’s own assumptions concerning the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability,
including assumptions about risk.
31 | P a g e

Page 37

The following sets out the Fund's investment assets (by class) measured at fair value
according to the fair value hierarchy, as held by the Fund's custodian, at 31st March
2015.
2014/15
Type of Asset

Level 1
£000

Level 2
£000

Level 3
£000

UK Equities
Global Equities
Emerging Market Equities
Fixed Interest
Index Linked Securities
Overseas Fixed Interest
Overseas Indexed Linked
Unitised Insurance Policy
Property
Private Equity
Cash & Cash Equivalents

312,365
309,628
58,499
156,993
89,045
89,916
14,638
446,370
5,702

1,556
4,607
78,772
101,494
-

17,966
4,587
-

1,483,156

186,429

22,553

2013/14
Type of Asset

Level 1
£000

Level 2
£000

Level 3
£000

UK Equities
Global Equities
Emerging Market Equities
Fixed Interest
Index Linked Securities
Overseas Fixed Interest
Overseas Indexed Linked
Unitised Insurance Policy
Property
Private Equity
Cash & Cash Equivalents

316,478
280,844
47,095
141,368
78,543
74,609
446,986
17,200

1,528
79,316
-

12,343
4,935
-

1,403,123

80,844

17,278

TOTAL

TOTAL

N28. Transfers in and out of the Pension Fund
Transfers in from other pension funds
During 2014/15 an employer transferred its employees in from another Local
Government Pension Scheme. The Pension Fund received a bulk transfer value of
£2.56m to cover these liabilities.
Transfers to other pension funds
The Pension Fund received notification from the Government that all Probation
Trusts across the country would be transferring their pension assets and liabilities
into the Greater Manchester Pension Fund (GMPF). This involved transferring the
Gloucestershire Probation Trust’s records, pensioners and members to GMPF
together with the Probation Trust’s share of the Pension Fund assets. At the time of
the last Annual Report this figure was estimated to be approximately £25m. When

32 | P a g e

Page 38

the transfer of assets was completed the actual amount calculated by the Actuaries
was £28.7m and this was paid in November 2014.

N29. Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been
adopted
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15
requires consideration of the impact of Standards that have been issued but not yet
adopted. This is to enable users to evaluate the risk of these new Standards on the
Pension Fund's current financial position.
The Pension Fund has yet to adopt International Financial Reporting Standard
(IFRS) 13 Fair Value Measurement (May 2011). IFRS 13 defines fair value and sets
out in a single IFRS a framework for measuring fair value. It also identifies the
disclosure requirement for items measured at fair value. Although this new standard
was originally issued in May 2011, and applied to accounting periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2013, its adoption was deferred by the CIPFA/LASSAC Local
Authority Accounting Code Board until the 2015/16 Code.
It is anticipated that this Standard will not have a material impact on our accounts
when it is applied prospectively from 1st April 2015.

N30. Events after the reporting date
Preliminary figures received from the Custodian indicated that at the end of August
2015 the value of the Pension Fund's investments had fallen by approximately 9%
on year end values. However investments are valued at fair value and the benefit
only realised upon sale and therefore any change is considered a non-adjusting
event.

33 | P a g e

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40

Page 41

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Megan Gibson
In-charge auditor
T 0117 305 7681
E megan.gibson@uk.gt.com

Terry Tobin
Senior Manager
T 0121 232 5312
E Terry.p.Tobin@uk.gt.com

Elizabeth Cave
Director
T 0117 305 7885
E liz.a.cave@uk.gt.com

September 2015

Year ended 31 March 2015

The Audit Findings
for Gloucestershire Pension Fund
.

Page 42

www.grant-thornton.co.uk

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Hartwell House
55-61 Victoria Street
Bristol

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Elizabeth Cave, Director.

Yours sincerely

2

Chartered Accountants
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.
A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and
its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details.

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness. However,
where, as part of our testing, we identify any control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose defalcations or
other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept any responsibility
for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for,
any other purpose.

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

This Audit Findings report highlights the significant findings arising from the audit for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Gloucestershire Pension
Fund, the Audit and Governance Committee), as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. Its contents have been discussed with management.

Audit Findings for Gloucestershire Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2015

Dear Members

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Shire Hall
Gloucester
Gl1 2TG
14 September 2015

Page 43

7
19
21

2. Audit findings

3. Fees, non-audit services and independence

4. Communication of audit matters

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

A Audit opinion

Appendices

4

Page

1. Executive summary

Section

Contents

3

Page 44

Executive summary

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence

02. Audit findings

01. Executive summary

Section 1:

Page 45

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Our audit is substantially complete although we are finalising our work in the
following areas:
• completion of final specialist partner review,

We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers at the
start of our audit, in accordance with the agreed timetable.

Introduction
In the conduct of our audit we have made only one change our planned audit
approach, which we communicated to you in our Audit Plan dated 17 April 2015.
This was to re-classify the audit of the valuation of level 3 investments as a
significant risk.

Under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit Practice we are required to report
whether, in our opinion, the Fund's financial statements present a true and fair
view of the financial position and expenditure and income for the year and
whether they have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting.

This report highlights the key matters arising from our audit of Gloucestershire
Pension Fund's (the Fund) financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.
It is also used to report our audit findings to management and those charged with
governance in accordance with the requirements of International Standard on
Auditing 260 (ISA UK&I).

Purpose of this report

Executive summary

Executive summary

• obtaining and reviewing the final management letter of representation, and
• updating our post balance sheet events review, to the date of signing the
opinion.

5

Page 46

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Controls
Roles and responsibilities
The Council's management is responsible for the identification, assessment,
management and monitoring of risk, and for developing, operating and monitoring
the system of internal control.

Further details are set out in section two of this report.

We have not identified any adjustments affecting the Fund's reported financial
position. However, we have agreed with officers some minor adjustments to
improve the presentation of the financial statements.

Findings

The key messages arising from our audit of the Fund's financial statements are:
• Working papers are generally of a high standard,
• The draft accounts were presented for audit in accordance with the agreed
timetable and required minimal adjustment. These are explained further in
Section 2 of this report. This demonstrates good quality.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
September 2015

Acknowledgment
We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the
assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Matters arising from the financial statements audit have been discussed with the
Director of Strategic Resources and the finance team.

The way forward

The only control weaknesses which we wish to bring to your attention are in
relation to some general SAP general IT controls. Further details are already
provided within Section 2 of the County Council's Audit Findings Report which
is being presented to the same meeting as this report and are therefore not
replicated here. However they are not considered to have a significant impact
on the statement of accounts.

Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of
control weakness. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify any
control weaknesses, we report these to the Council as the administering
authority.

Key issues arising from our audit
Financial statements opinion
We anticipate providing an unqualified opinion in respect of the Fund's financial
statements.

Executive summary

6

Page 47

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence

02. Audit findings

01. Executive summary

Section 2: Audit findings

Page 48

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Our proposed audit opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements in the
Statement of Accounts is set out in Appendix A.

Audit opinion
We provide two opinions on the Pension Fund, as follows:
• an audit opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements included in the
Council's Statement of Accounts
• an opinion on the Pension Fund financial statements included in the Pension
Fund Annual Report, which confirms if these financial statements are
consistent with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts

Changes to Audit Plan
We have one change to our Audit Plan as previously communicated to you.
This involved the re-classification of risk to the valuation of level 3 investments
to a significant risk.

In this section we present our findings in respect of matters and risks identified
at the planning stage of the audit and additional matters that arose during the
course of our work. We set out on the following pages the work we have
performed and the findings arising from our work in respect of the audit risks
we identified in our audit plan, presented to the Audit and Governance
Committee in April 2015. We also set out the adjustments to the financial
statements arising from our audit work and our findings in respect of internal
controls.

Audit findings

Audit findings

8

Page 49

A level 3 investment is one where at least
one input that could have a significant
effect on the value of the investment is not
based on observable market data. The
most common example of which are
investments in private equity, which are
valued using various estimation
techniques.

documented our understanding of processes and key controls over
the transaction cycle,
reviewed the control reports from all fund managers with level 3
investments,
tested level 3 investments by obtaining and reviewing audited
accounts at latest date for individual investments and agreeing these
to the fund manager reports,
reviewed the nature of estimated values and the level of assurance
that management has over level 3 investments.

•
•

•

review of unusual significant transactions.

•

•

testing of journal entries, and

•

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a
presumed risk of management over-ride
of controls

Level 3 Investments – Valuation is
incorrect.

review of accounting estimates, judgements and decisions made by
management,

•

Our audit work has not identified any
significant issues in relation to the risk
identified.

We set out later in this section of the report our
work and findings on key accounting estimates
and judgments.

Our audit work has not identified any evidence
of management override of controls. In
particular the findings of our review of journal
controls and testing of journal entries has not
identified any significant issues.

Our audit work has not identified any issues in
respect of revenue recognition.

We rebutted this presumption during the interim phase of the audit, and
this was communicated to members as part of the audit plan.

Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK&I) 240 there is a
presumed risk that revenue may be
misstated due to improper recognition

Improper revenue recognition

Assurance gained and issues arising

Work completed

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

3.

2.

1.

Risks identified in our audit plan

In this section we detail our response to the significant risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan. As we noted in our plan, there are two
presumed significant risks which are applicable to all audits under auditing standards.

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, either due to size
or nature, and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement
uncertainty" (ISA (UK&I) 315).

Audit findings against significant risks

Audit findings

9

Page 50

Valuation is incorrect.
(Valuation net)

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Investment values – Level 2
investments

We have undertaken the following work in relation to
these risks:

Investment activity not valid.
Investment income not
accurate. (Accuracy)

Investment Income

 reviewed the reconciliation of information provided
by the fund managers, the custodian and the
Pension Fund's own records and sought
explanations for variances.

 undertaken a walkthrough of the key controls to
assess the whether those controls were in line
with our documented understanding, and

 documented our understanding of processes and
key controls over the transaction cycle,

We have undertaken the following work in relation to
these risks:

 reviewed the reconciliation of information provided
by the fund managers, the custodian and the
Pension Fund's own records and sought
explanations for variances.

 undertaken a walkthrough of the key controls to
assess the whether those controls were in line
with our documented understanding, and

 documented our understanding of processes and
key controls over the transaction cycle,

Work completed

Description of risk

Transaction cycle

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risks identified.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risks identified.

Assurance gained & issues arising

In this section we detail our response to the other risks of material misstatement which we identified in the Audit Plan. Recommendations, together with management
responses, are attached at Appendix A.

Audit findings against other risks

Audit findings

10

Page 51

Benefits improperly
calculated/claims liability
understated

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Benefit payments

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this
risk:

Recorded contributions not
correct. (Occurrence)

Contributions

 rationalised pension paid with reference to changes in
pensioner numbers and increases applied in the year to
ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily
explained.

 tested a sample of individual pensions in payment by
reference to member files, and

 tested key controls for member to be enrolled on the
scheme,

 undertaken a walkthrough of the key controls to assess
the whether those controls were in line with our
documented understanding

 documented our understanding of processes and key
controls over the transaction cycle

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this
risk:

 performed an analytical review on contributions to ensure
that any unexpected trends are satisfactorily explained.

 tested a sample of contributions to source data to gain
assurance over their accuracy and occurrence, and

 tested key controls over the contributions made to the
fund,

 undertaken a walkthrough of the key controls to assess
the whether those controls were in line with our
documented understanding

 documented our understanding of processes and key
controls over the transaction cycle

Work completed

Description of risk

Transaction cycle

Audit findings against other risks continued

Audit findings

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risk identified.

Assurance gained & issues arising

11

Page 52

Investment activity not valid.

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Investments
purchases and sales

We have undertaken the following work in relation to this
risk:

Member data not correct.
(Rights and obligations)

Member Data

We reviewed the reconciliation of information provided by the
fund managers, the custodian and the Pension Fund's own
records and seek explanations for variances

 tested a sample of changes to member data made during
the year to source documentation.

 tested key controls over changes to the pension fund
data set, and

 undertaken a walkthrough of the key controls to assess
the whether those controls were in line with our
documented understanding

 documented our understanding of processes and key
controls over the transaction cycle

Work completed

Description of risk

Transaction cycle

Audit findings against other risks continued

Audit findings

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risks identified.

Our audit work has not identified any significant issues in
relation to the risks identified.

Assurance gained & issues arising

12

Page 53

DRAFT

Because of the nature of the fund no
significant accounting judgements have been
made, with all judgements following the
requirements set out in the Code.

Estimates and
judgements

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

 Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

 Sufficient assurance has been provided by either the experts used for valuing the
fund, or we have been able to agree valuations to third party evidence. .

Assessment
 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators
 Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

The fund has a material balance of
investments with significant unobservable
inputs. The valuation of these investments is
subject to varying degrees of estimation
uncertainty. The fund discloses the differing
methods of valuation for these funds within the
accounting policies. In each case the Fund
choses to rely on the valuation provided by the
fund manager.

 The policies are considered appropriate under the accounting framework in place.

There are two key policies in relation to
revenue recognition: that for contribution
income and that for investment income.
Normal contributions are accounted for in the
payroll month to which they relate.
Investment income from equities is accounted
for on the date stocks are quoted ex-dividend.
Income from fixed interest and index-linked
securities, cash and short term deposits is
accounted for on an accruals basis, as is
income from other investments.

Revenue
recognition

 The policies are considered appropriate under the accounting framework in place.

Comments

Summary of policy

Accounting area





Assessment

In this section we report on our consideration of accounting policies, in particular revenue recognition policies, and key estimates and judgements made and included with the Council's
financial statements.

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements

Audit findings

13

Page 54

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

 Accounting policy appropriate but scope for improved disclosure

 Accounting policy appropriate and disclosures sufficient

Our review of accounting policies has not highlighted any issues which we
wish to bring to your attention.

We have reviewed the Fund's policies
against the requirements of the CIPFA
Code and accounting standards.

Other accounting policies

Assessment
 Marginal accounting policy which could potentially attract attention from regulators

Comments

Summary of policy



Assessment

DRAFT

Accounting area

Accounting policies, estimates & judgements continued

Audit findings

14

Page 55

Matters in relation to laws and
regulations

Written representations

Disclosures

Matters in relation to related
parties

Confirmation requests from
third parties

Going concern

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

 Our work has not identified any reason to challenge the Fund's decision to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

 We obtained direct confirmations from all of the investment managers and the custodian of the fund. Positive confirmation was
received from all parties, and as a result no further procedures were considered necessary.

 We are not aware of any related party transactions which have not been disclosed.

 Our review found no non-trivial omissions in the financial statements.

 A letter of representation has been requested from the Fund.

 We are not aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

 We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit and Governance Committee. We have not been made aware of any
incidents in the period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit.

Commentary

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Matters in relation to fraud

1.

Issue

We set out below details of other matters which we are required by auditing standards to communicate to those charged with governance.

Other communication requirements

Audit findings

15

Page 56



As part of the examination of the IT control environment we have
noted some deficiencies that have been reported as part of the
main audit. As this report is on the same agenda, the issues have
not been repeated, but they are equally applicable to the pension
fund as it shares the same control environment.

Issue and risk

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

1.

Assessment

The matters that we identified during the course of our audit are set out in the table below.

Recommendations made on main county audit in relation to IT control
environment to be actioned.

Recommendations

Our audit included consideration of internal controls relevant to the preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. We considered and walked through the internal controls
for level 3 investment valuation, investment income, investment values, contributions, benefits payable and member data as set out on page 9 above.

The purpose of an audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Internal controls

Audit findings

16

Page 57

Nil
£Nil

Overall impact

Impact on
accounts

None

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

1

Detail

Reason for not adjusting

The table below provides details of adjustments identified which we request be processed but which have not been made within the final set of financial statements. The audit
committee is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the table below:

Unadjusted misstatements

DRAFT

17

Page 58

Presentation and
disclosure

Presentation and
disclosure

Note 27

Various

Account balance

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

2

1

Adjustment type

Our audit identified cash and cash equivalents of £882,000 in Note 27 which had
been classified as a level 3 investment and should have been included as a level 1
investment.

Examples include including a reference to the introduction of the Career Average
Revalued Earnings (CARE) under operations and membership, to update the note
referring to the delay in the introduction of IFRS 13 and to expand a note that
explains the material transfer out of the fund. We also highlighted some notes where
comparative information in respect of the prior year needed to be added. A note was
added for post balance sheet events as well as explaining the nature of subsequent
change in the fair value of investments after the balance sheet date. This is in
addition to the need to tidy up formatting, spelling and some punctuation prior to
publication.

Our review of the accounts highlighted some minor improvements that were
required to be made to the accounts. None of these were individually significant and
they have been made to improve the final presentation and aid clarity for the reader.
The proposed minor adjustments were agreed with the Fund and changes have been
made to the draft accounts submitted for audit.

Impact on the financial statements

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Misclassifications & disclosure changes

Audit findings

18

Page 59

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence

02. Audit findings

01. Executive summary

Section 3: Fees, non-audit services and independence

Page 60

1,190
24,989

1,190

24,989

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

The proposed fee variation for IAS 19 above takes account of
the work we are required to undertake for admitted bodies
within the Audit Commission regime and was communicated in
the April audit plan.

Total audit fees

Proposed fee variation

23,799

Actual fees
£

23,799

Per Audit plan
£

Pension fund scale fee

Fees

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit.

Nil

Fees £

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the
requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our
independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We
have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards and
therefore we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective
opinion on the financial statements.

Independence and ethics

None

Service

Fees for other services

Fees, non-audit services and independence

Fees, non audit services and independence

20

Page 61

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

04. Communication of audit matters

03. Fees, non-audit services and independence

02. Audit findings

01. Executive summary

Section 4: Communication of audit matters

Page 62

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for
the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these responsibilities.

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice (the
Code) issued by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and locally
determined work. Our work considers the Fund's key risks when reaching our
conclusions under the Code.

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit
Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies
in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering finance and
governance matters.

The Audit Findings Report has been prepared in the context of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission
(www.audit-commission.gov.uk).

Respective responsibilities

The Audit Plan outlined our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, while this Audit
Findings report presents the key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together
with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

International Standard on Auditing ISA (UK&) 260, as well as other (UK&I) ISAs,
prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with
governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.

ü

ü

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, relationships and other
matters which might be thought to bear on independence.

ü
ü
ü
ü
ü

Expected auditor's report
Uncorrected misstatements
Significant matters arising in connection with related parties
Significant matters in relation to going concern

ü

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or
others which results in material misstatement of the financial
statements
Compliance with laws and regulations

ü

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and
network firms, together with fees charged

ü

ü

22

Audit
Findings

ü

ü

ü

Audit
Plan

Confirmation of independence and objectivity

Views about the qualitative aspects of the entity's accounting and
financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising
during the audit and written representations that have been sought

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing
and expected general content of communications

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those
charged with governance

Our communication plan

Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance

Communication of audit matters

Page 63

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

Appendices

Appendices

23

Page 64

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Director of Strategic
Resources is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts, which
include the pension fund financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2014/15, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit
and express an opinion on the pension fund financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards also require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Respective responsibilities of the Director of Strategic Resources and auditor

This report is made solely to the members of Gloucestershire County Council in accordance
with Part II of the Audit Commission Act 1998, as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March
2010 and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

We have audited the pension fund financial statements of Gloucestershire County Council for
the year ended 31 March 2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The pension fund
financial statements comprise the Pension Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement and the
related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2014/15.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GLOUCESTERSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

September 2015:

Elizabeth Cave
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor
Hartwell House
55-61 Victoria Street
Bristol B61 6FT

In our opinion, the information given in the annual report for the financial year for which the
pension fund financial statements are prepared is consistent with the pension fund financial
statements

Opinion on other matters

In our opinion the pension fund’s financial statements:
·
give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the year
ended 31 March 2015 and of the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and
liabilities as at 31 March 2015,and
·
have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and applicable law.

Opinion on the pension fund financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the pension fund’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Director of Strategic Resources; and the overall
presentation of the pension fund financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information and the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the
audited pension fund financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Scope of the audit of the pension fund financial statements

We anticipate we will provide the Council with an unmodified audit report on the Pension Fund

Appendix A: Audit opinion

Appendices

24

Page 65

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Audit Findings Report 2014/15 | September 2015

grant-thornton.co.uk

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires.
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide
services to clients.

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited
liability partnership.

© 2015 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66

Agenda Item 6
Pension Board
23 October 2015
rd

Key Performance Indicators
Report of the Strategic Finance Director

Purpose of the Report
To supply the Pension Board with information on the performance indicators set out
in the 2014/15 Annual Pensions Report and to update the Board on the KPI’s which
are being piloted by the national Scheme Advisory Board (SAB).

Report
Key Performance Indicators that are included in the 2014/15 Pension Annual Report

To meet the reporting requirements as detailed in the Guidance for Local
Government Pension Scheme Funds 2014, issued by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) a suite of key performance indicators are
included within the Pension Fund Annual Report.
These indicators, which are provided at annex 1 cover:
Financial Performance:
·
·
·
·
·
·

Analysis of pension contributions
Analysis of pension overpayments
Scheme Administration Costs
Investment Management Costs
Oversight and Governance Costs
Key Staffing Indicators

Administration Management Performance:
·
·
·
·
·
·

Annual Benefit Statements sent by Statutory Deadline
Number of retirement estimates provided within 10 working days
Pay retirement grants within 10 working days
Pay death gratuities within 3 working days
Results from employer satisfaction survey
Complaints received

Board members are requested to consider the performance of the Gloucestershire
Fund against these key performance indicators.

Page 67

The Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) pilot KPI’s

A suite of KPIs have been developed during 2014 by the SAB Scheme
Reporting Group, which comprises LGPS practitioners and external bodies
including NAPF, CIPFA and the ACA sub group. These KPIs have been piloted by a
number of LGPS Funds in 2014.
The aims of the pilot KPIs are to enable funds to compare themselves across
the scheme and will enable the Scheme Advisory Board to provide more
targeted support to funds.
Results will help funds to:
performing funds and examples of concern for each KPI;
actually consumed compared with the SSAB estimate;
al feedback on the KPIs and examples of best practice
and example of concern and any suggestions for their clarification,
refinement and improvement.
The pilot has 4 core KPIs (to help identify underperforming Funds) and 14
supplementary KPIs (to help identify where potential problems lie and improvements
could be made), covering the following areas:
Core KPIs:
·

Risk management (covering all Pension Fund activities)

·

Funding level and contributions

·

Deficit recovery

·

Required investment returns
upplementary KPIs:

·

Pensions Committee and Pensions Board member
competence

·

Administering authority staff accountability, leadership
experience and training

·

Statutory governance standards and principles (as per DCLG
or SSAB and TPR codes)

·

Quality and accessibility of information and statutory
statements/strategies/policies (Governance, FSS, SIP,
comms, admin authority and employer discretions policies)

·

Compliance with the for Investment Governance Principles
(ie Myners principles) and voluntary adoption of UK
Stewardship Code and UNPRI

·

Historic investment returns (last 3, 5, and 10 years) and
total investment costs compared to other LGPS funds

·

Annual report(s) and audited financial statements

Page 68

·

Scheme membership data

·

Pension queries, pension payments, and annual benefit
statements

·

Cost efficient administration and overall VFM management

·

Handling of formal complaints and IDRPs

·

Fraud prevention

·

Internal and external audit

·

Quality assurance

.
All Administering Authorities are now being asked to submit data to the SAB in
relation to these 18 KPI’s as detailed in annex 2 of this report by 31st October. The
return for the Gloucestershire Fund is currently being produced.
The SAB will be considering the results of this exercise during December 2015 and
expect to recommend to the Department for Communities and Local Government
(DCLG) in early 2016 that they are included in LGPS regulations/scheme guidance
and/or as part of the 31st March 2016 valuation process. They will then be issued in
April 2016 and from December 2016 be used as a tool to assess and support Funds.
Recommendations
It is recommended that:
The Pension Board notes:
· the Key Performance Indicators which are included in the Pension Fund
Annual Report, in annex 1.
· the Scheme Advisory Board KPI’s in annex 2.
Contact Officer
Graham Burrow (01452 328944)

Page 69

Annex 1
Financial Performance: Key Performance Indicators
Analysis of pension contributions
The timeliness of employee and employer pension contributions which should be
paid to the Pension Fund no later than 19 days from the date they were deducted
from employees’ salaries is shown on the following page.
Employee and
employer
contributions

Total

On time

Late

£000

£000

%

£000

%

2013/14

82,000

81,600

99.6

400

0.4

2014/15

90,000

89,500

99.4

500

0.6

In total 24 (2013/14 28) monthly payments were received late, of which 22 (2013/14
27) were received within the month. The remaining two payments were received 96
days late.
The option to levy interest on overdue contributions was not exercised.
Analysis of pension overpayments

Pension overpayments b/fwd
Pension overpayments in the current year
Overpayment recovered
Overpayments written off
Pension overpayments c/fwd

2014/15
£
7,680
38,644
(21,904)
(922)
23,498

Gloucestershire Pension Fund participates in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI)
which is a biennial data matching exercise administered by the Cabinet Office.
Pension data was submitted through the web portal in October 2014 and data match
reports produced matching:· active pensioners with Department of Works and Pensions (DWP) deceased
records, to identify cases where we might be continuing to pay someone who
has died;
· pensioners with payroll records for public sector bodies to identify cases
where pensions should be abated
· pensioners receiving an enhanced injury pension with individuals receiving
relevant state benefits to identify cases where they have failed to declare
relevant state benefits that may remove or reduce entitlement to the
enhanced pension.

Page 70

Match reports are being reviewed and additional information sought as necessary.
The reports identified 27 pensioners who had died, where Pensions had not been
informed of their death, in 14 of these cases the pension had already been
suspended. Invoices have been raised to recover overpayments. No cases of fraud
have been identified to date.
Administration Management : Key Performance Indicators
The Pension Fund has a number of local performance targets which are detailed in
the table below. The table shows the levels of achievement for the last five years.
Activity
Target 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11
Annual Benefit Statements sent by statutory deadline
0%**
100%
100%
see
note
below
Provide retirement estimates within 10 working days
100%

100%

100%

Total completed

505

531

655

754

749

Completed on time

646

428

594

685

693

78.2%

80.6%

90.7%

90.9%

92.5%

739
716
96.9%

889
844
94.9%

775
763
98.5%

65
58
89.2%

45
37
82.2%

51
39
76.5%

Achievement

80%

Pay retirement grants within 10 working days
Total completed
634
745
Completed on time
707
721
Achievement
90%
89.7%
96.8%
Pay death gratuities within 3 working days
Total completed
39
57
Completed on time
40
54
Achievement
85%
97.5%
94.7%

** Annual Benefit Statement – Statutory deadline was 30/09/2014. 100% of Annual
Benefit Statements were sent out during December 2014.
The Pension Section not achieving its local performance targets has primarily been
due to additional workloads experienced as a result of the unprecedented levels of
statutory change and requirements of late. This has resulted not only in additional
complexity and issues to be managed in the administration of the LGPS by the
Pension Section, but also in the need to provide substantial additional support to
both Employers and Scheme Members alike.

Page 71

Results from employer satisfaction survey
The Fund also carries out an annual employer satisfaction survey to measure the
level of benefit/improved understanding employers derive from attending the
employers’ forums and when contacting the Pensions section.
% of employers completing the survey who agreed with the following
statements:
2014/15 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11
%
%
%
%
%
The forums had raised their
understanding of current
pension issues
Employers who felt that what
they had learned would help
them in their role as a pension
fund employer
Where I have contacted the
Pensions office regarding a
pension related issue, I am
satisfied with the assistance
given in relation to the query

83

83

88

100

100

88

78

94

100

73

95

72

100

94

100

Complaints received
2014/15
Type of complaint
System error
Staff error
Staff attitude
Total
Total as % of workload

1
1
0.0%

Financial indicators
Scheme Administration Costs
The Pension Fund subscribes to the annual CIPFA Benchmarking Survey. This
survey for 2014/15 shows that whilst the number of employers within the
Gloucestershire Fund exceeded the average of all the Funds in the survey our
administration costs per member are £13.19 compared to the average cost of £18.68
per member within the survey. This places the Fund in the lowest cost quartile.
Cost per member
Fund cost
Group average
Difference

2014/15
£
13.19
18:68
(5.49)

2013/14
£
13.08
20.75
(7.67)

Page 72

2012/13
£
14.40
20.87
(6.47)

2011/12
£
14.68
21.54
(6.86)

2010/11
£
15.59
22.14
(6.55)

Investment Management Costs

Cost per member

2014/15
£
111.07*

2013/14
£
111.82

2012/13
£
67.36

2011/12
£
75.04

2010/11
£
68.56

* Pension Fund expenses have been accounted for in accordance with the CIPFA
guidance, Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs.
In accordance with this guidance, from 2014/15 transaction costs previously included
within the purchase cost/proceeds of investment purchases and sales have been
added to Investment Management Costs with a corresponding offset against Profit
on Disposal of Investments.
The management fees disclosed above include all investment management fees
directly incurred by the Fund i.e. including those charged on pooled fund investments
which tend to be deducted from the market value of the investments rather than
invoiced to the Fund. In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through
the bid-offer spread on investments sales and purchases. These are reflected in the
cost of investment acquisitions and in the proceeds from the sales of investments.
A third category of expense, Oversight & Governance, has also been added and
some costs previously included within Administration Costs and Investment
Management Costs now come under this category.
Oversight and Governance Costs

Cost per member

2014/15
£
7.86

Key Staffing Indicators
The table below shows the number of staff over the last five years in the Pensions
Administration Team working exclusively on local government pension scheme
benefits. This table shows a trend of a declining number of staff looking after an
increasing number of fund members.
2014/15 2013/14
Number of full time equivalent
Pension Fund staff

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

10.6

9.8

9.8

9.9

12.7

Total fund membership

51,794

50,419

47,712

46,214

44,939

Number of fund members to one
member of administration staff

4,886

5,145

4,869

4,668

3,539

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74

2

Page 75

(see explanatory notes)

SAB - KPI Proforma 1/Primary

b) Actual investment returns consistently undershoot actuarially required
returns

Investment returns

4

Self score -1 point for each one

a) Required future investment return (calculated on standardised and
prudently consistent basis) not aligned to the investment strategy target
return, so lower likelihood of the fund achieving its funding strategy.

Deficit recovery
(see explanatory notes)

3

a) No or opaque deficit recovery plan.
b) Lengthening implied deficit recovery period (for contributions)
c) Implied deficit recovery periods >25 years for last 3 valuations.
Self score -1 point for each

No evidence of a risk register being
a) prioritised
b) annually reviewed by Pensions Committee
c) annually reviewed by internal audit or external audit
d) used to reduce high risks
e) available for public scrutiny.
Self score -1 point for each one
a) Decreasing funding level (calculated on a standardised and consistent
Funding level and contributions basis) and/or in bottom decile of LGPS, over the last three triennial valuations
on a standardised like for like basis.
b) No or minimal employer funding risk assessment and monitoring and not
(see explanatory notes)
reported to Pensions Committee
c) Total actual contributions and actual received in last 6 years less than that
assumed and certified in last 2 triennial valuations.
d) Net inward cash flow less than benefit outgoings so need for any
unplanned or forced sale of assets.
Self score -1 for each one

1 of 1

a) Required future fund investment return (calc by actuary) are consistent with and aligned to
investment strategy (asset mix expected target returns) so higher likelihood of the fund meeting its
funding strategy.
b) Actual investment returns consistently exceed actuarially required returns
Self score +1 point for each one

Evidence and e-links to demonstrate :

70-79 =+3
60-69 = +2
<59 = +1
b) Employer funding risk assessment and monitoring reports to Pension Committee. Net inward
cashflow forecasts meeting planned income or significantly exceeding benefot outgoings.
c) Total actual contributions received in last 6 years equate to (or exceed) that assumed and
certified in the last 2 triennial valuations.
d) Net inward cash flow significantly exceeds benefit out-goings
Self score a) as above and rest +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate :
a)Transparent deficit recovery plan for tax raising and non-tax raising bodies.
b) Implied deficit recovery reducing each triennial valuation.
c) Implied deficit recovery period in line <15 years for last 3 valuations
Self score +1 point for each one

80-90 =+4

91 to >100 =score +5

a) Funding level rising and getting closer to 100% funded (or above) over last three triennial
valuations on a standardised like for like basis. Funding %

Evidence and e-links to demonstrate

Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) risks prioritised on a RAG red, amber, green or by a scoring methodology
b) completed actions signed off by Pensions Committee after at least annual update,
c) annual review by internal audit and external audit
d) <3 priority/“red” risks
e) public disclosure of a summary version published on fund website or in fund annual report.
Self score +1 point for each one

No or only a partial and/or an unclear risk register with no or poorly specified Comprehensive risk register covering the key risks (in accordance with current CIPFA guidelines)
or un-implemented mitigation actions over time leading to increased fund risk. with prioritisation, robust mitigation actions, defined deadlines, with action tracking to completion.

Risk management

1

Examples of good practice for high performing fund

Examples of level for concern

No. Key Indicator

LGPS SAB Key Performance Indicator Proforma

Fund
score

15/10/2015

Evidence and
comments

$QQH[

Page 76

Pension queries, pension payments, and Annual Benefit Statements

Cost efficient administration and overall VFM fund managemen

Handling of formal complaints and IDRPs

Fraud prevention

Internal and external audit

Quality assurance

13

14

15

16

17

18

SAB - KPI Proforma 1/Secondary

Scheme membership data

12

11

10

9

8

7

6

Appointees unclear of statutory role and unable to clearly articulate the funds funding and investment objectives
No evidence of

Pensions Committee and Pensions Board members competence

Examples of good practice for high performing funds

b) Publish in Administering Authority accounts by 1st October
c) Publish fund report and accounts of SAB website before 1st November.
Self score +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) >99% common data meets TPR quality and due date standards
b) >95% of conditional data meets TPR quality and due date standards. Plans in place to improve this
Self score +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Good website with interactive scheme member and employer access.
b) ABS meet or exceed regulatory standards and due timelines for issuance
Self score +1 for each
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) In top quartile with low total admin cost pa per fund member (based CIPFA or other benchmark tool calculated on a
consistent and transparent basis).
b) Lead and/or actively participates in collaborative working and collective LGPS procurement, shared services or CIVs
Self score +1 for each

No evidence of
a) quality management system
b) external reviewed publications
c) externally approved website accessibility
d) any awards.
Self score -1 for each one

1 of 1

No or minimal systems/programme or plan or mechanisms in place to
a) Prevent fraud
b) Detect fraud
c) detect pension over-payments due to unreported deaths
Self score -1 for each one
a) No annual internal audit or qualified internal and external audit opinion
b) Urgent management action recommended on high/serious risks
c) Only moderate or low level of assurance and a number of high priority action recommended
Self score -1 for each

Score -1

a) No Stage 2 IDRPs and no Pensions Ombudsman findingsagainst the fund actions in last 3 years.
Score +1
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Fraud prevention programme in place.
b) Use external monthly, quarterly/annual mortality screening services, and
c) participate in bi-annual National Fraud Initiative
Self score +1 for each one
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Unqualified annual internal reports with no or only low priority management action
b) Unqualified and annual external audit with no or only low priority management recommendations
c) Full or substantial assurance against all key audit areas with no high risk recommendations
Self score +1 for each
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Fund has formal quality management external certification
b) Crystal Mark for plain English for publications/forms
c) externally approved website accessibility
d) pensions & investment recognition award(s)
Self score +1 for each one

a) Any Pensions Ombudsman determinations (and any appeals) fines were against the actions of the fund (ie not employer). Evidence and e-links to demonstrate

Self score -1 for each

b) Not in any national or regional frameworks for any externally procured services or collective investments.

a) In bottom quartile with high total admin cost pa per member (based CIPFA or other benchmark tool)

a) No or poor website with no scheme member or employer access.
b) ABS do not meet regulatory requirements or due timelines for issuance
Self score -1 for each

a) Common data does not meet TPR standards
b) Conditional data do not meet the TPR standards. No plans in place to rectify this
Self score -1 for each

c) Published on SAB website after 1st November
Self score -1 for each one

15/10/2015

Appointees understand their statutory role and are able to clearly articulate the funds funding and investment objective
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) representation from different scheme employer types (scheduled and admitted) and member types (actives, deferred and
a) different scheme employer types and no or minimal scheme member representation.
pensioners).
b) No training needs analysis, or training strategy, or training log or use of CIPFA LGPS training framework
b) annual training plan recorded against the CIPFA knowledge and understanding framework
c) No training record disclosures
c) annual training records disclosed in Annual Repor
d) Self assessment
d) annual self-assessment of training undertaken and identification of future needs
Self score core -1 point for each
Self score +1 point for each one
Administering authority staff accountability, leadership, experience, and training
a) No or only part time Head of Fund and or only part time officers
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
b) No or little induction or on- going training provision or experience recorded on the adoption of CIPFA LGPS knowledge and
a) Experienced Head of Fund with full time dedicated officers with at least 3+ years’ experience.
understanding framework.
b) staff undertake regular CIPFA LGPS TKU or other CPD training recorded across all LGPS skills (governance, benefits
Self score -1 for each one
administration, funding, investments, and comms)
Self score +1 point for each one
Several key areas of non- compliance with
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
Statutory governance standards and principles (as per DCLG guidance and TPR codes
a) DCLG LGPS statutory guidance
a) Full compliance with DCLG LGPS statutory guidance
b) TPR guidance and codes
b) Full compliance with TPR guidance and codes for public sector pension schemes
c) Meet or exceed other LGPS best practice on recording all key decision taking and annual self, scheme employers, scheme
and reasons why not explained.
member assessment of overall effectiveness.
c) No, little or poor key decision taking records and no or poor self, or scheme employers, or scheme members assessment
Self score +1 for each one
of overall fund effectiveness.
Self core -1 for each one
Quality and accessibility of information and statutory statements, strategies, policies (governance, FSS, SIP, comms, admin a) Statutory publications not all in place or published on fund website or updated in accordance with regulatory requirements
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
and due timelines.
authority and employer discretions policies)
a) Statutory publications all in place and published on fund website and updated in accordance with regulatory requirements
b) Fund and employers discretions not published
and due timelines.
b) Fund and employer discretions pubished
c) Do not seek to meet any recognised ‘Plain English’ or e-publishing standards
Self score -1 for each one
c) Meet ‘Plain English’ and or other recognised e-publishing standards
Self score +1 for each one
a) Adoption and report compliance with Investment Governance Principles (IGP) (was Myners Principles) and voluntary
No or un-explained non- compliance and/or non-support of
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
adoption/signatory to FRC Stewardship Code and UNPR
a) IGP
a) 100% compliance with IGP
b) UK Stewardship Code
b) adoption and public reporting of compliance against the FRC UK Stewardship Code
c) UN PRI
c) external managers or fund are PRI signatories
Self score -1 for each
Self score +1 for each
a) overall fund investment returns (net of fees) for last 1, 3, 5 years bottom two quintiles
Evidence and e-links to
a) Historic investment returns (last 1, 3, 5, and 10 years) and b) total investment costs compared to other LGPS funds
(See explanatory notes)
Score -3 and -5 points
a) overall fund investment return (net of fees) for last 1, 3, 5 years
b) Retain fund managers under- performing their mandates for 2 triennial valuation cycles.
a) Top quintile score +5 points
Score -1 point
b) Next two quintiles score +3 and 0 points respectively
c) Fund does not benchmark its fund manager and total investment costs relative to other LGPS funds
b) >75% of fund mandates deliver over rolling 3 year performance periods
Score +1 point
Score -1 point
c) Fund benchmarks its fund manager and total investment costs
Score +1
Annual report and audited financial statements
a) Do not fully meet some regulatory requirements or CIPFA LGPS guidance
Evidence and e-links to demonstrate
a) Meet all regulatory and CIPFA best practice guidance
b) Not published in Admin Authority Accounts by 1st October.

Examples of level for concern

No. Key Indicator

5

LGPS SAB Key Performance Indicator Proforma

